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AGE UK OLDHAM LIMITED
(A COMPANY LIMITED BY GUARANTEE)

TRUSTEES' REPORT (INCLUDING DIRECTORS' REPORT)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019

The directors present their report and financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2019.
The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the accounting policies set out in note 1 tothe financial statements and comply with the charity's governing document, the Charities Act 2011 and theStatement of Recommended Practice (FRS 102), "Accounting and Reporting by Charities", issued 1 January2016.

Structure Governance 8 Mana ement

Age UK Oldham Limited is a company limited by guarantee and registered under the Companies Act 2006,registration number 07267880. Its actiwties are governed by its Memorandum and Articles of Associationgiven at Companies House on 27 May 2010 as amended on 8 March 2011.

The company is a registered charity, chanty number 1145196, registered on 21 December 2011 and works toimprove the lives of older people within the metropolitan borough of Oldham. The company has been grantedexemption from Corporation Tax as a charity in line with paragraph 1 of Schedule 6 of the Finance Act 2010.
The body responsible for the management of the charity is the board of directors which meets at least eighttimes a year. Each member is elected to serve for a period of three years, and consists of a chairman,treasurer and five other members. The chairman cannot serve more than two consecutive terms of three
yea I's.

Directors

The directors in office during the period and at the date of this report are set out on page 1.

The board of directors has responsibility for the overall control and governance of the charity, and boardmembers are expected to take an active role in the strategic direction of its work as well as share their skillsand knowledge for the benefit of the organisation.

New directors are elected and serve for an initial period of three years.

Directors are currently recruited by advertising locally using role descriptions and person speciffications. Inaddition, in their everyday roles in the community, board members network with local organisations and asvacancies arise are able to propose potential members who possess the relevant skills and experience tocomplement the existing group.

Statement of Trustees' Res onsibilities

The trustees (who are also directors of Age UK Oldham Limited for the purposes of company law) areresponsible for preparing the Trustees' Report and the financial statements in accordance with applicable lawand United Kingdom Accounting Standards (United Kingdom Generagy Accepted Accounting Practice).

Company Law requires the trustees to prepare financial statements for each financial year which give a trueand fair view of the state of affairs of the chantable company and the group and of the incoming resourcesand application of resources, including the income and expenditure, of the charitable group for that year.
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In preparing these financial statements, the trustees are required to:

~ Select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently;
~ Observe the methods and principles in the Charities SORP;
~ Make judgements and estimates that are reasonable and prudent;~ State whether applicable UK Accounting Standards have been followed subject to any materialdepartures disclosed and explained in the financial statements; and
~ Prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis unless it is inappropriate to presume that thecharity will continue in operation.

The Trustees are responsible for keeping adequate accounting records that disclose with reasonableaccuracy at any time the financial position of the charitable company and enable them to ensure that thefinancial statements comply with the Companies Act 2006. They are also responsible for safeguarding theassets of the charity and the group and hence for taking reasonable steps for the prevention and detection offraud and other irregularities.

In so far as the Trustees are aware:

~ There is no relevant audit information of which the charitable company's auditors are unaware, and~ The Trustees have taken all steps that they ought to have taken to make themselves aware of anyrelevant audit information and to establish that the auditors are aware of that information.

The Trustees are responsible for the maintenance and integrity of the corporate and financial informationincluded on the charitable company's website. Legislation in the United Kingdom governing the preparationand dissemination of financial statements may differ from legislation in other jurisdictions.

d ti iT

Directors bring a diverse range of skills and expertise to the board in support of the organisation's objectives.
Induction for board members begins with a comprehensive accompanied full day visit to all Age UK Oldham'sprojects, day centres, luncheon clubs, trading outlets and head office; incorporating introductions and fulldiscussions vrith staff and service users, to ensure a full understanding of the charity and its day to dayoperations.

An annual internal review is undertaken to define current skills and identify any areas for development andfurther training. Trustees are encouraged to participate in appropriate training courses, both locally andregionally.

All directors are issued with information regarding their roles and responsibilities (e.g. Charity commissionpublications CC3, CCS 3 CC11 are provided).

Relationshi s with Related Parties

The charity is currently a brand partner of Age UK and works with Age UK branches in Greater Manchester,the North West and within England to share good practice, formulate policy, and respond to governmentpolicies and changes in health & social care within the borough of Oldham.

Our chief executive takes part in Age UK regional meetings and national conferences, is an active member ofthe Age UK Greater Manchester Chief Officers collaborative and also a member of the Age UK North West

-3-
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Regional Consortium where Brand Partner Chief Officers network, discuss and take the opportunity toinfluence future AUK developments.

Age UK Oldham staff are encouraged to take part in local and regional networking and development groupsrelevant to their area of service.

Or anisational Structure / Decision Makin Process

A board of management consisting of a chairman and six directors directs the general conduct of the charity'sactivities. In addition to the AGM the board meets at least six times throughout the year.

The board works with the chief executive who makes decisions on the day to day operation supported by asenior management team.

Regular reports on financial performance are submitted by the finance manager and considered by the board.These accounts are used by the directors for their monitoring of the charity's activities and to assist withdecision making with respect to the charity's activities.

The chief executive is responsible for the operational management and administration of the charity with anaverage of 95 staff members and 320 volunteers. She makes decisions on the day to day operation supported
by the senior management team whose roles and responsibilities are clearly defined by full job descriptions.

The administration and finance teams and project officers are based at our head office at 10 Church Lane,Oldham. Our information, advice and support services were delivered from nearby premises in the towncentre at Lord St, Oldham but for financial reasons will need to return to Head office next year. We recognisethat this is a retrograde step due to the uneven cobbles on the lane and partial disability access to the buildingitself, with no possibilities to improve the situation due to listed building restrictions. However, having retainedthe Lord St premises to accommodate a move of one of our retail premises, we are still able to offer interview
facilities with wheelchair access on an appointment basis.

Our day centres, shops, luncheon clubs, Men in Sheds outlets, community equipment shop and showroom,
HandyVan/adaptations workshop and offices, community cafh and catering department are all dispersed atvarious locations throughout the borough with separate management teams covering these areas.

Wider Network

Many of our projects involve partnership working with other local organisations, the value of which is
demonstrated in the outcomes of the diverse services that we offer to older people. Locally, Age UK Oldhamworks closely with representatives of the voluntary, statutory and private sectors.

The well-being of older people is at the heart of everything we strive to achieve and our chief executive is anactwe member of the Oldham Safeguarding Adults Executive Partnership Board whose aims are to safeguardand promote the welfare of aduits at risk of abuse, injury or harm and treat everyone with dignity and respectthrough multi-agency collaboration and co-ordination.

She also has a seat on the Oldham Dementia Partnership Board which works to improve the earlyidentification of people with dementia and enhance the quality of care that patients with dementia and theircarers receive and co-chairs the Prevention Strategy Group which is tasked to develop their 2016/19 business
plan. She represents the organisation on the Mental Health Strategic Partnership which works to improve thehealth and well-being of people in Oldham (aged 18-64 years) who suffer from a mental illness, gives her time
and expertise to Pennine Care Foundation Trust's Charitable Fund Committee and Oldham United Charities
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Board and is a Trustee of West Pennine Citizens Advice where she also sits on the HR and Finance sub-group.

As members of Oldham's Voluntary Community 8 Social Enterprise Partnership we are committed to workingtogether to influence and be engaged in service planning and decision making processes that affect thecommunities of Oldham, striving for greater equality, understanding and respect between all partners and ourChief Executive meets with other local voluntary sector groups to explore and take forward VCFSE investmentopportunities.

The newly formed integrated care organization entitled, Oldham Cares brings together Oldham Council. NHSOldham CCG, GP's and Health and Social Care providers and our CEO has a seat on the newly formedProviders Alliance which reports to the Oldham Cares Board.

Age UK's work with the local hospital services provides links to our involvement with the Urgent CareProgramme Board whose meetings she also attends whilst our work in the community informs ourinvolvement in the Thriving communities programme where our CEO has a seat.

As a board member of Healthwatch Oldham she contributes to their work as an independent "consumerchampion' for health and social care in Oldham.

~~REi~k~
R

t

A full risk analysis of the charity has been undertaken. The trustees can confirm that the major risks to whichthe charity is exposed have been reviewed, and systems established to mitigate those risks, areas requiringattention have been highlighted and time limits for action have been set. An assessment of the major financialrisks, e.g. FCA compliance, Oldham Local Authority and Health contracts, trading operations, reduction in orloss of funded projects etc. has been canied out and is reviewed on an on-going basis with regular reports tothe trustee board.

In addition:
~ Two members of staff have achieved their certificate from the National Examination Board inOccupational Health and Safety, enabling us to comply with our legal obligation to appoint a competentperson to advise on health and safety,
~ A number of staff members have been successful in gaining the CIEH Risk Assessment Certificate;~ Health and Safety training relevant to their roles is undertaken by staff and volunteers and is regularlyreviewed and updated;
~ In all our buildings and premises where we carry out activities we have undertaken a full risk assessmentwhich is monitored continually and remedial action taken as required;
~ In line with current legislation Fire Risk assessments have been canied out at all of our premises;~ Risk assessments are also undertaken on our clients, staff and volunteers to allow them to participatewithin a safe environment;
~ Disclosure and barring scheme checks are undertaken on staff and volunteers as appropriate;~ Where risks are insurable at an economic price such insurance is taken out
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Ob ectives & Activities

The constitution states that:
'The objective of the organisation shall be to promote the relief of elderly people in anymanner which now or hereafter may be deemed by law to be charitable in and around the
metropolitan district of Oldham. '

Age UK Oldham manages a full range of services that benefit older people either directly or throughgeneration of funds. Presently, services are funded from a variety of sources including contracts with theLocal Authority and Oldham's Clinical Commissioning Group, Lottery funding and Age UK funding.

Capital is generated at present through our ten retail outlets, catering outlets and our Events centre GeorgeStreet Chapel.

2018/19 has been an extremely challenging year financially. As the legacy of the loss of insurance trading
income, cession of minor adaptions contract, tapered reduction in Ambition for Ageing funding all hit home, we
were faced with a deficit which impacted on services. Due to the running costs of our Lord St premises we
took the difficult decision to move our Information, Advice and Support services into Head Office on Church
Lane where the access for customers is poor.
Working hard to reduce spending and increase income we were able to produce a balanced budget for
2019/20 and can face the year with renewed optimism.

The organisation aims to provide opportunities for the entire spectrum of older people in the local area. At its
inception, traditional services were targeted towards more dependent older people but the charity has now
expanded its role to include preventative projects aimed at a more diverse population including older people
from ethnic minority communities.

In other areas, we continue to develop our portfolio of preventative services and social enterprise ventures inorder to assist older people to live independently.

Across the Oldham Borough, the range of innovative projects we deliver seeks to 'fill the gape' which statutory
services may not provide, and offer choice to both frail older people and the more active, whilst our
Information Advice and Support and Dementia Information services and Carers assessments give older
people the vital assistance they need to access benefits and services and retain their independence. In
addition, our vaned portfolio of low-level services which includes Luncheon Clubs, HandyVan Services, Minor
Adaptations, Safe at Home and Shopping Service, Community Cafe, Leisure Outlets, Falis Exercise scheme,
Supporting people to choose Care options, Promoting independence using holistic assessments and support
to live their lives with confidence whilst compilation of Life Story books for Care Home residents etc. serves to
maintain their health and well-being and enhance their quality of life.

Later additions to our portfolio include "Men in Sheds" funded by the Local Authority, "Promoting IndependentPeople' a social prescribing initiative contracted by Pennine Care Foundation NHS Trust whilst one off grants
contributed to introducing digital technology skills to older people.

Aiming to improve the physical and emotional health of older people in the community and to foster asset
based community development we have a wide and varied portfolio of activities delivered both in-house and in
numerous neighbourhood buildings. Providing both close and arm- length support in the community helping to
reducing social isolation and having a positive impact on those people living with physical and mental health
conditions.

Full details are appended as follows:
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AMBITION FOR AGEING

Funding amount and source:
6125,150 The National Lottery Community Fund (formerly the Big Lottery)

Service Objective:
Age UK Oldham and Action Together are working in partnership as the Local Delivery Lead for Oldham'sAmbition for Ageing Programme. This programme works in 8 of the 10 local authority areas in GreaterManchester. It is funded by the Big Lottery and led by Greater Manchester Centre for Voluntary Organisation(GMCVO).

Our aim is to create places that are age-friendly and empower people to live fulfilling lives as they age,ultimately reducing social isolation.

The five-year project will help communities, businesses and public services work together to betterunderstand what older people need and want.
GMCVO was awarded over F10 million from the Big Lottery for this project that aims to reduce the socialisolation of older people in Greater Manchester.

Description of Service:
We are working in three areas of Oldham —Alexandra, Crompton and Failsworth West wards —talking to localpeople aged 50 and over to find out what would make their neighbourhood a better place to grow older in. Weare working with individuals, community groups and local businesses from these areas to help us find out thebest ways of increasing social connections and reducing social isolation.

We are investing small amounts of money (up to 62,000) to support the community to bring to life their own'age-friendly' project ideas.

We use asset-based community development approaches, working with individuals and groups to help themto develop their ideas and supporting them to build their capacity.

Older people are at the heart of decision-making for the project. Our Age Friendly Project Group steers theproject and makes decisions about larger investment applications (between 6500 and E2,000). We have localsteering groups in the 3 ward areas which make decisions about investment applications of up to 6500.
Activity / improvements in last 12 months:
In 2018/1 9 we approved 42 small projects, investing a total of 654,466 to make the 3 ward areas more age-friendly. The concept of age-friendly communities covers a broad spectrum of ideas, and our funded projectshave included:

a trip to Bristol Slavery Museum, supported by a 6 week lunch club with Sickle Cell and other specifichealth and dietary advice plus chair-based exercise sessions
2 community projects on the Eldon Street estate, launched by way of a community event attended bythe Mayor of Oldham
Drystone walling with mindfulness
Development of a train the trainer package for a pre-retirement course
A research project about the engagement of Bangladeshi women in community activityBritish Sign Language training for staff, volunteers and partner agencies working in the Ambition forAgeing areas, particularly Alexandra ward where Oldham Deaf Social Club is situated.

We have also provided development support for groups and signposted to other funding opportunities.
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We have supported research projects happening in Greater Manchester on topics such as:Resilience in later life
Transport
Isolation and loneliness

Older people centred Ik value our staff and volunteers
Older people are at the heart of decision-making for the project. Our Age Friendly Project Group steers theproject and makes decisions about larger investment applications (between 5500 and E2, 000) We have localsteering groups in the 3 ward areas which make decisions about investment applications of up to E500. Wehave been led by our local steering groups which are made up of local people aged 50+ who want to have asay in deciding which project ideas to invest in.

We have been out to talk to individuals and groups to tell them more about the project and support them toapply for a project investment or offer them other support or signposting

Committed to working in partnership
We have worked in partnership with a range of organisations: Action Together, Oldham Council, First ChoiceHomes Oldham, Housing 21, Early Help, etc to deliver proiects and engagement activities.

We were encouraged to apply for the Greater Manchester Mayor's Age-Friendly Challenge and were awardedAge-Friendly Neighbourhood status, with Merit, for each of the 3 ward areas we are working in. We were oneof 3 applicants invited to be presented with the award by Andy Bumham at the 'Doing Ageing Differently'conference in February along with our Alexandra ward volunteers and proiect leads.

Older people centred, value our staff and volunteers and committed to working in partnershipWe celebrated our projects at a special event which was also broadcast live on Oldham Community Radio.

We have supported some of our Ambition for Ageing volunteers to participate in events and to engage in theGreater Manchester Ambition for Ageing work. We have supported 3 volunteers who are on the EqualitiesBoard, 1 of whom is on the Equalities Executrve Board.

Continually improving our systems and processes
We continued to work on gape in the project's reach identified through the Equalities Board data analysis. Wehave increased our reach with traditionally underrepresented groups, e.g. BAME communities, carers, menand people with less schooling or qualifications
We have extended our reach further by working with stroke survivors, by funding a 'Rainbow Roadshov/ toprovide to support to older LGBT people living in sheltered housing and care homes and by funding a seriesof projects to be delivered by volunteers linked with St Paul's Church who work with a range of BAMEcommunities and asylum seekers.

We were invited to present a workshop at the Greater Manchester Age-Friendly Futures event in Decemberabout our equalities work, challenges and successes. We presented along with 2 of our volunteers; PaulineColtman, who is our volunteer and involved in running the Monday Clubbers group for people with sight lossand their carers, and Terrence Cowley, who presented about the LGBT work in Oldham. We also talkedabout Deaf awareness and did a (very basici) introduction in British Sign Language

Teresa Griffiths has been developing a relationship with Oldham Deaf Social Club and encouraging them toapply for Ambition for Ageing investment. This has been a long process of building up trust. She delivered aDementia Fnends session to the Deaf Club supported by a BSL interpreter, trialling the new Dementia Friendsmatenals for the Deaf community by special request of the Alzheimer's Society Dementia Friends Officer forthis region As a person of trust, Teresa also delivered a Dementia Friends session to Tameside Deaf Cluband made links for them with the Ambition for Ageing Tameside project
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Relevant figures:
42 small projects, investing a total of F54,466

Risks/Threats:
Funding reduces each year until the project ends March 2020.

Some projects may require longer-term development support but the current funding will not be available tosustain this level of activity.

Evaluation methodology involves long surveys for participants to complete. There is a risk that the datacollected will not be a large enough sample size to draw statistically significant conclusions for the evaluationreport. However, AfA Oldham is performing well in terms of data collection and response rates.

Opportunities:

'Ageing Well' strategic work being done by Oldham Council for the Greater Manchester Mayor's Challenge.

We are liaising with the new Community Fund Local Funding Officer for Oldham & Rochdale to look atopportunities to continue and develop some of the workstreams.

BEFRIENDING SERVICE

Funding Source:
Age UK Oldham

Service Objective:
To recruit volunteer befrienders
To train, support and maintain regular contact with all befrienders
To ensure a high quality safe service for housebound older people

- Achieved
Achieved

- Achieved

Description of Service:
The demand for our befriending service is increasing year on year. Frail older people (rightly so) are able toremain at home with the support of care packages. Even though their physical needs are provided for, theirsocial and mental health needs are often neglected.
Age UK Oldham's befriending service is offered by social workers, GPs and community nurses as acontribution to managing and addressing feelings of isolation and loneliness.

Our befriending service makes a difference to older local people but we urgently need more volunteers tomeet the demand which grows week by week

All Volunteers & Befriending Co-ordinators are trained, supported and monitored and we hold regularnetworking events for both themselves and clients. Participants who visit older people in their own homes are
thoroughly vetted and trained, including undergoing a DBS check.

Activity / improvements in last 12 months:
Online DBS checking has made the process of checking volunteers quicker.

We have appealed for new volunteers through our 'older active people' services such as the tea dance, craff
group and OLGBT groups.
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Bringing people referred to befriending service to groups with the support of volunteers in those activrtiesbuddying up has been successful again this year —we have had 16 new people join groups who originallywere referred for one to one befriending.

Relevant figures:
We have recruited 9 new befrienders this year but sadly lost 5 (1 passed away, 2 have given up due to theirclients passing away, and two others have stopped volunteering due to their own problems with health/familyissues)

Currently 36 face to face visits
5 telephone befnending

16 people referred to one to one subsequently joined groups

Waiting list of one to one referrals this year = 29

Risks/Threats:
Not enough volunteers to meet demand- increase group befriending activities.

CARE HOME REVIEWS

Funding Source:
OMBC 686, 957 per annum.

Staffing levels 1.49 FTE plus 0.49 Manager

Service Objective:
To carry out individual annual statutory care home reviews for people living in residential care including those
people who receive dementia and mental health premiums. The service's main priority is to ensure the
appropriate level of care is being provided by care homes for individual residents assessed needs.

This includes checking that each resident's care 8 support plan and risk assessments are up to date and
operationally correct to meet the individual resident's assessed needs. The review process includes checkingresident's weight, personal care, skin integrity, emotional well-being, DNARs in place and advanced care
planning, stimulation on offer, finances in place, podiatrist, optician, district nurse input, dietician, MUST, BMI
and audiology input, fails / incidents and mobility, Waterlow scores and that all preventative equipment and
professionals referrals are in place where necessary.

The service carries out Capacity Assessments for all residents who do not have a Lasting Power of Attorney
Deputy in place and where necessary, completes a Best Interest Decision regarding the completion of NHS
Continuing Health Care Funding for individual residents

The service completes the NHS Continuing Health Care Checklist during each review as part of the process.Where necessary the officers provide additional written evidence when checklists are positive and goingforward for further assessment by CCG to the Decision Support Tool Level - usually known as the DST. The
service supports CCG at the DST assessment by attending and taking part on the resident's behalf.

The service continues to support Oldham Cares (OMBC / CCG) with safeguarding issues raised in the care
homes. Attending and take part in individual case conferences, where concerns have been raised for
individual residents and where necessary may carry out specific number of reviews in care settings where thesafeguarding issue has affected more than one resident.

-10-
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Description of Service:
The service carries out individual scheduled statutory care and support reviews and completes the NHSContinuing Health Care Screenings for adults and older people living in care homes in the borough of Oldhamand surrounding Association of Greater Manchester Authorities (AGMA), in addition to this we undertake anumber of unscheduled safeguarding reviews and protection plans for those service users where concernshave been reported to Oldham Adult Services.

The service was initially commissioned in April 2012 for a period of 3 years and received an additional 12months funding for the period April 2015 I March 2016 at the end of March 2015. In March 2016 we madean application for the continuation of the contract which was successful and received a further two-year periodof funding which was due to end in March 2018 was rolled over to March 2019 and in July 2019 we receivedconfirmation that the contract will be rolled over to June 2020 with the option for a further year until 2021.
The service has continued to build positive professional relationships with our partners and regular informationexchange and meetings take place between the Age UK service manager and the leads from Oldham Cares,Neighbourhood Access Intervention Team, Pennine Care District Nurses, Integrated Care Team, OMBCProcurement Team, Infection Control and Safeguarding leads in the borough. Processes and procedures arewell established for the allocation and assignment of individual review cases with referral workflow routes andfeedback mechanisms with partner agencies to ensure good practice and follow up of individual cases, whereappropriate, is in place.

Our continued attendance at the Oldham Social Care 8 Health Partnership, The Care Home GovernanceGroup and the Integrated Health 8 Social Care Group has been beneficial to the service and helps our teamnetwork with care home managers, other NHS, CCG and local authority colleagues. This provides anopportunity to discuss topics which are relevant to all our agendas e.g. provision of NHS equipment to carehomes, GP Medical Management Plans and Advanced Care Planning, Mental Capacity issues and use ofDNAR (Do Not Resuscitate protocols), Care Home Quality Standards, changes to policies which affectplacements, discharges and admissions to residential care from hospital and general issues regardinginfection control, training opportunities for the care homes etc.

In addition to the above the service manager regularly attends and takes an active part in safeguardingstrategy meetings / case conferences, where areas of concern have been reported to the local authority and Ior in the process of being investigated. The review team have now become integral to this process for allresidential or dual registered home residents. Changes to the local authority safeguarding policy andprocedures and the new management structure as a result of the health & social care integration agenda intoOldham Cares has not affected this relationship. Currently the Care Home Review Team is not, at this time,being sectioned out into the new health E. social care clusters. We have been requested to make contact andbuild up professional working exchanges with all cluster leads.

The team continues to work well with the local care management teams regarding placements in care homes,and where contracts have been suspended due to poor practice. We have provided assistance along with ourcolleagues from the Care Quality Commission, OMBC Procurement and Safeguarding to support the carehome to address and rectify issues where possible and offer training in specific areas.

We continue to forge our relationships with other services and professionals who are directly, or in somecases, indirectly involved with the provision of care e.g. district nurses, GPs, PCT Clinical Leadership forAdults, Continence Service, Falls Prevention Team and Mental Health Teams. This enables the service toprovide a holistic approach to reviews, improve knowledge and create inter agency working and earlyresolution of some of the issues arising from reviews.

Age UK nationally has shown great interest in the review service. Age UK Oldham appears to be the only AgeUK to have secured this type of statutory service provision and responsibility. The service is featured in theAge UK national guide for innovative approaches and good practice.

-11-
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Activity / improvements in last 12 months:
Continue to develop the service by updating our care home review template as necessary. The template is the
tool which all information is documented at the time of the review — prior to the information being uploaded to
the local authority social care system. For example, where DNARs are in place for any residents, we have
included details of resident's capacity that need to be noted, who was consulted / involved in the decision and
who signed the documentation. This is necessary should there be any discrepancy following death

Links made with newly established social care and health links based in clusters.

Closer links made with distnct nurses regarding the fast tracking of CHC paperwork when residents are
classed as End of Life on Statement of Intents.

Relevant figures:
Care Home Reviews April 2018 - March 2019.

The service completed 524 scheduled annual reviews

524 NHS Capacity Assessments / Best Interest Decisions / Consent Forms in relation to CHC processes
completed

524 Continuing Health Care Checklist / Screenings.

Dealt with 313 concerns raised as a result of the reviews with care home managers / district nurses directly.
This includes additional professional involvement / referrals or changes to the care 8 support operational plan
/ risk assessments.

Number of safeguarding concerns reported to the local authonty: 7

Risks/Threats:
~ Loss of contract.
~ Litigation in respect of individual staff oversights relating to individual residents' safety when canying out

a review.
~ The service workf low of incoming work far outstrips staff capacity.
~ Staff absences create issues regarding number of reviews undertaken.
~ Costs of providing reviews and the associated paperwork needed for CHCs including photocopying /

printing and postage —no uplift in funding since 2012 even though additional costs incurred.

CHADDERTON OVER 60s CENTRE

Funding Source:
Age UK Oldham / income from room hire

Service Objective:
Chadderton over 60s centre is home to a vanety of Age UK Oldham Ied activities: IT Classes, Just4Men, Craft
group, Friendship Group, Lunch Club, OLGBT group & Befriending 8 interactors Support meetings.

Description of Service:
Chadderton over 60's is a self-contained building providing a range of actwities for older people.
To ensure sufficient costs are met to run the building we let out room space to other organisations and groups
for a hire fee.

-12-
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Activity / improvements in last 12 months:
Each of the AUKO led groups have continued to grow even though we regularly lose people. Ring and ride
bring people from outside of the Chadderton area so the centre does not just attract local people

Relevant figures:
Our Out & About OLGBT Group have doubled membership this year bringing OLGBT from areas throughout
Oldham and from Rochdale and Milnrow areas too.

Risks/Threats:
Loss of groups = Loss ofrevenue
We have limited capacity at Chadderton for space or group hire due to the groups already using the building.
Should those groups leave then we are confident new organisations or groups would take their place.

The centre is a polling station and is also hired out for parties

CHARITYSHOPS

Funding Source:
To raise funds for the charity we operate ten charity shops and one furniture outlet. We sell donated goods at
Hollins, Lees, Failsworth (2), Shaw, Uppermill (2), Oldham Town Centre 81 shop, Bam Street Furniture Outlet,
Huddersfield Road and Vintage.

Our shops generate income providing low priced household goods, clothing and furniture to the local
community. The shop sales (excluding giff aid) during 2018/2019 amounted to 6722, 026 an increase of
F64,399 from last year and Gift Aid decreased by 2 12,408 to 872,810.

Service Objective:
We have 10 retail outlets which are currently overseen by a retail manager, with the assistance of a retail
operations officer, 17 shop managers, a team of drivers and a staff rota of over 120 volunteers across 10
sites.

This year has seen the relocation of our very popular 81 shop. We are now located in a much brighter and
more inviting premises across the road and sales continue to soar. Both customers and volunteers alike have
been very happy with the move and the additional sorting space in the rear of the store has allowed us to
cater for a higher quantity of donations.

Keeping the community spirit alive we continue to link in with local events. Our Uppermiil shops in particular
are a core part of village life, dressing for Yanks day and braving the rain through the Whit walks.

We have seen the introduction of ISO 9000 quality system into two of our charity shops with a view to rolling
this out to all ten of our retail sites in the upcoming year. This system has encouraged us to continually
improve on our current working practice and identify key areas for improvement.

EBay now acts as a reliable income stream as staff knowledge improves on what goods sell well.
Furthermore, we have now built a good relationship with an auction house who help us to price and sell any
highly unusual or valuable goods in specialised auctions.

Gift aid donor cards have helped us to gain customer loyalty and made it easier for gift aid items to be
managed in the shop.
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The retail manager closely examines expenditure and is continually looking for cheaper suppliers and new
ways of recycling old goods. The decision to move to a new rag company has enabled us to gain income from
old toys, ink cartridges, bedding and much more.

The shops are continuing to thnve and as always we are overwhelmed with the generosity from our
customers. Finally, we could not continue without our team of trusted and dedicated volunteers whose
passion for the charity is always at the heart of what they do.

Description of Service:
Ten retail shops selling a wide variety of donated goods whilst acting as a link in the community to our local
services

Relevant figures;
Shop turnover was 6722, 026 with a further 672,610 due from gift aid

Risks/Threats:
We are facing increasing issues with transport. Our staffing levels have taken a recent hit meaning we cannot
get vital stock moved to sites as quickly as is necessary.

Low staffing levels have also had a direct impact on the amount and size of furniture we are now able to
collect. We are currently only collecting items that can be moved by one driver, meaning shops can no longer
sell items such as dining tables, sofas and beds.

Our retail manager is working hard to continue rotating stock between shops however with the huge amount
of donations we gratefully receive this is not always enough to support our busy shops.

We face a high turnover of volunteers who continually need training, inducting and managing. Whilst we
endeavour to make every effort for new volunteers to join our team we still face weekly issues surrounding
staffing levels at all of our sites.

Strengths:
Donations continue to pour in to our local shops negating the expense of 'bag drops' and transport for
clothing and bric-a-brac.

Cybertill continues to help us gain a substantial profit from Gift aid and helps us to analyse our takings with

ease, identifying key areas for us to focus our efforts.

CHOOSING THE RIGHT CARE

Funding Source:
OMBC contract current funding received f29,311 per annum

Service Objective:
To provide an opportunity for older people, their families and carers to have access to a wide range of
independent information, support and practical assistance regarding care and support options.

Helping older people to continuing living independently, whenever this is an option, is a prionty, and when this

is not possible provide them with all the options / information to help them make an informed choice. This
includes ensuring that they are fully aware of all the care and support details of each care home / setting and
the ffinancial implications of living in a care setting either on a temporary or permanent basis.
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Description of Service:
The service helps older people and their carers to understand the care system by providing a range of advice,

one to one support and written guides including government guidelines about funding their legal rights and

responsibilities, local services, costs and process in place and how to access services.

Our staff keep up to date with changing government directives and the changes within social care systems to

ensure that we are prepared and able to respond to our service users' needs appropriately and that all the

information is timely and accurate.

The stafl's experience and knowledge enables Age UK Oldham to provide good quality, timely information

which is imperative to empowering older people to make the right choices for themselves and for protecting

the most vulnerable members of society who are unable to make those choices by working alongside them.

Offering practical and emotional support makes this service unique in Oldham and underpins and promotes

the value of choice in later life. The service works alongside social workers in the teams across Oldham and

receives referrals for those clients and / or their families who are in need of one to one support and practical

help either at a time of crisis or to make important changes in their life.

ln addition to one to one support we facilitate a drop-in service for family members or more active service

users who can visit our office. Choosing the Right Care is widely used and respected by professional staff and

service users alike.

Over the years, funding for this service has been reduced, although demand for the service has remained

high. In order to continue to deliver the same high quality of service we have had to be creative with our

resources and introduced measures to focus our practical one to one support for our most vulnerable client

group i.e. those without effective family or carers. We are using other methods of communication including

web based and written guidance, telephone consultations whenever possible for family members and carers

who are able to self-navigate the system with minimal support from our staff.

The scope of the project has been much broader over the past five years responding to the changing social

care climate. The introduction of personalisation and prevention directives has been instrumental in changing

the dynamics of the senrice which now offers a more holistic approach to care, assessments and the

processes involved whether moving into a care home or continuing to live independently in the community.

Directives from Oldham Cares regarding people moving into care homes directly from hospital has had an

impact on the number of people we have supported to view care homes prior to making their decision. Those

people in hospital are now being admitted to care homes on a temporary basis in the first instance, often in

the private sector as local authority provision is overstretched and is now only providing enablement

placements. If those hospital leavers placed in temporary placements are later deemed to become

permanent placements, then people tend to stay where placed and are reluctant to move. This narrows down

the choices people have available to them. This has been addressed with the Team Manager at the Royal

Oldham Hospital and we have this year been looking at how these issues may be addressed and for people in

this situation to be given choice at an earlier intervention or our service remaining in contact with those people

who leave hospital having had no choice in their destination. This could include more input at the temporary

placements or more access prior to discharge.

The service continues to work integrally with care management across the newly established clusters and the

Hospital Discharge Ward.

The service is responsible for providing web based data to social services teams and managers and in the

past had developed the bed vacancy list for care homes on a daily basis which included types of rooms

available, local authority costs, private costs, third party top up fees etc. The local authority has now chosen to

adopt the Capacity Tracker System which is a GM initiative and a system whereby care homes themselves

are given passwords to enter their own bed vacancies on a daily basis. In some ways this is a backwards step

for Oldham as the new system has minimal functions and very basic details can be entered e.g. number of
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beds available. AUKO have been leading for the authority on fine tuning the system to give the basic required
information needed by prospective residents and professionals when using the system. We developed a short
template for the system designers which would give the required information. However, there are still some
teething issues which we are continuing to work on. The local authority is pleased with our work in this area
and have decided that they will not remove the 54,000 cost of the new system they have purchased from our
funding

Our service fits well into the focal authority's social care strategy and is active in promoting and maximising the
income levels of older people and their carers to enable them to tap into the lower level of preventative care
and support services if not Care Act eligible.

Activity / improvements in last 12 months:
Assistance with the GM led Capacity Tracker introduction into Oldham local authority —AUKO developed a
short template to collect the relevant details required to enable people to make an informed choice. The
system by GM is very basic and useful to strategic leads as it only documents places / beds available for
market purposes It does not give the relevant funding details / types of rooms etc. required by prospective
residents / families and social work staff. This GM led initiative still does not meet the same standard that the
AUKO bed vacancy list provided. Work is planned with the development team to enhance the system for
public use.

Strengthened our relationships with the newly formed clusters.

Relevant figures:
Continue to support the Discharge Ward and hospital social work staff x 2 half days per week based at the
ROH Ward G1.

Care and support to assist people to stay independent in their own home or find suitable care placements in
residential settings.

Telephone calls with clients /services:
Unique telephone clients
Face to face office

3677
600
220

Information packs issued / written
Guides including factsheets etc.
Website hits to service site:

3958
13,351

Risks/Threats:
~ Loss of contract
~ Loss of disabled / accessible building
~ Changes in social and health care directives
~ Duplication of other services
~ Still high demand for service —on occasions difficult to manage with one worker.
~ Holiday / sick leave cover can be problematic.
~ Changes in local authority directives may see a backward step for Oldham residents in reiation to bed

vacancy access.
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DAY CARE

Funding Source:
OMBC on a contractual basis 6291,938

The 3 year contract came to an end in 2018. Discussions took place to extend the contract in the Summer of

2019 for a further 3 years.

Service Objective:
To provide day care services with meals activities are tailored to the needs of the individual and personal care
for the older people assessed as having substantial and critical needs, giving respite to families and carers.

Description of Service:
Historically the contract provides 130 places per week at two locations. Selina House in Oldham Town Centre

and Bluebells in Moorside. Overall provision of 6,760 places annually.

The criterion remains unaltered. To identify physically frail, mentally impaired and vulnerable people who

require support to retain independence, their needs being assessed as substantial and critical and is funded

by social services on a contractual basis.

We presently employ 10 staff working across both sites.

Activity / improvements in last 12 months:
In October 2018 we moved day services from Stoneswood into a bungalow in Moorside purchased by AUKO

in the Summer of 2018. This fabulous building provides a home from home dementia-friendly environment

and also provides scope to develop the service by providing extra days of service as per business plan.

As the demand for self-funded places continues we will open a third day at Bluebells creating an extra 20
places. To date all places have been taken. We are confident that we can further develop self- funded day

care places in the future.

Plans are in place (June 2019) to take over the day service and TUPE Staff from Laurel Bank this should

show an increase in day care places provided on the contract.
Relevant figures:
The contract provides 130 places per week across two locations.

Risks/Threats:
The threat continues with the L/A challenging financial position and constant focus on delivering financial

efficiencies.

Any reductions in funding will impact on the service and staff within the contract.

DEMENTIA INFORMATION & SUPPORT SERVICE

Funding Source:
OMBC / CCG: 622,790 per annum

Service Objective:
To provide a wide range of dementia related information 8 emotional support for people who have a formal

diagnosis of dementia and also to offer the service to those people who choose not to engage with other

statutory services but have a memory problem and will engage with our team.
To provide and update the Dementia Information 8 Support Website.
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To produce the Living Well with Dementia Guide —a detailed information guide with ail the relevant dementia
services and support in Oldham.

To provide dementia related information in assessable formats including audio versions and large print.

To link, where possible, people with dementia and their carers to other ongoing support within the borough.

Description of Service:
AUKO Dementia Information 8 Support Service works in partnership with Pennine Care NHS Foundation
Trust and Oldham Council as part of The Oldham Memory Service model.

Finding out that you or someone you care for has memory problems or has been diagnosed with dementia
can be a very anxious time. At this time, people may be in need of additional emotional support and
reassurance. The Age UK Oldham Dementia Information & Support Service supports the clinical team from
the NHS Oldham Memory Clinic to provide that additional information, emotional support, access to
appropriate services, where necessary. Once people have received their forrnal diagnosis the clinical input
may cease but they have many unanswered questions and ongoing worries they need to address. This is
where the AUKO service is a really valuable resource for those people who need additional support during
this distressing penod. For those people who do not wish to receive a formal diagnosis the service provides
the same input and support.

Access to the service can be by self- referral for those people who have not got a formal diagnosis, via
telephone, a pre-arranged appointment, a referral from GPs, Memory Practitioners and other professionals.

Both home / hospital visits or drop in at our information centre for up to date guidance and one to one support.

With a rising number of people being diagnosed with dementia there is an increase in demand for information
and support to access appropriate services, maximise income and find out about sources of support locally
and nationally.

The service continues to work with other organisations to raise the awareness and the understanding of
dementia in the community and break down the barriers and fear associated with this illness. We have, this
year, been working closely with our partners across the borough, particularly, the Oldham Dementia
Partnership Board, where we have representation on the Dementia Partnership Steering Group and other
staff members that are active with discussion and dementia forum groups in Oldham which feed into the local
Dementia Strategy.

The service has continued to work collaboratively to influence service improvements and to share experiences
for improving the care and support for people with dementia and their carers.

The service continues to work integrally with the Choosing the Right Care / Money & Benefits and General
Advice team and other Age UK Oldham services to provide a holistic and seamless approach to care and
support for both the person with dementia and their carer.

Responsibility for the production and ongoing management of Oldham's Key Services for People with
Dementia continues to be managed by our team. We have carried out evaluations regarding the existing
profile of this guide and all the feedback has given the opportunity this year for the future development of the
guide to be more 'service user friendly' handbook. Alongside this we have developed a set of information
sheets on relevant subjects within the guide, where people can just have access to the section of the guide
they have a specific interest or need for at a particular time. This will cut down the amount of paperwork
people with dementia may need to look through to get to the information they are really needing at that time.
The new version will be launched September 2019. This handbook is a guide which navigates people
through canng for someone with dementia, getting a referral to the Memory Clinic, talking to family and friends
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about the diagnosis and joining a carers group / linking with peer support, helps them find out about benefits

and entitlements, getting out and about, keeping active, legal procedures, planning for the future e.g. Lasting

Power of Attorney, Life book etc. and local and national organisations which could offer support. The draft

version of the handbook has been well received by other members of the Dementia Partnership. Last year we

developed the audio version of the existing in line with NHS Accessible Information guidelines in both English

and Urdu. We hope that the new format will be easy for people to use and more cost effective to produce.

We continue to build our library of informative books aimed at various ages to explain memory loss and the

effect on the individual and their family.
We have been involved in GP engagement participation days as part of the wider Enhanced Memory Service

Agenda which have been aimed at GPs gaining a better understanding of what the voluntary sector is

contributing towards achieving the Dementia Strategy in Oldham. This has been one of the ways in which our

service has been able to forge closer links with GPs by giving them a support and information service in this

particular area whilst patients are awaiting clinic / test appointments.

Referrals to the service: self, social worker, memory clinic, word of mouth, known to other services. Limited

funding for this service has budgetary restrictions for purchasing publications required and the Clinical

Commissioning Group have stepped in to provide financial support to purchase a range of resources from

Stirling University. The service is currently delivered by the Specialist Dementia Carers Assessment Co-

ordinator who is supported by the Care & Support Services Manager for development of the service and the

Triage Officer on a day to day basis. Each have longstanding experience of working with dementia and have

been trained to a high level in advocacy, community care, legal issues and who have good local knowledge of

local services.

The Memory Clinic practitioners continue to meet with the Care & Support Services Manager and remain very

positive with the way our partnership with them has continued to grow. We feel this is excellent progress for

Age UK Oldham as historically the Memory Clinic has operated as clinical model with little or no voluntary

sector input in the past

Activity / improvements in last42 months:
New design for the Key Services Guide: Living Well with Dementia in Oldham.

New format and structure which is easier to read and navigate. A set of easy to use information sheets for

each section will cut down the amount of reading or looking through to get to the relevant issues people are
looking for at that time.

Plans in place for the service to work as an integral part of the Memory Service Carers Drop-In which is being

developed by the Memory Practitioners at the Memory Clinic premises.

Relevant figures:
Activity achieved April 2018 —March 2019

Unique clients receiving telephone or face to face advice & support: 679

Total number of times telephone / face to face advice provided: 1260

Connecting people to other dementia ongoing support services: 450

Total number of website views: 3314

Evaluations carried out with service users: 80
~ 99'/o of people reported improved awareness of services as a result of consulting with our team.
~ 85 % of people who used our service reported decreased anxiety.
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~ 67'/o of people using our service were connected to other dementia services which could be of mutual
benefit and

~ 92'/o of service users would recommend others to use our service. 8'/o did not answer this question.

Risks/Threats:
~ Loss of accessible building for drop in sessions / carers assessments.
~ Loss of contract.
~ Service demand outstretching staff capacity.
~ The service's continued development in areas which were not previously included in our service

specification but people with dementia would miss opportunities to engage with community if we did not
facilitate (hoping that this will be addressed with the update of Oldham Dementia Strategy),

SPECIALIST DEMENTIA CARERS ASSESSMENT SERVICE

Funding Source:
Oldham CCG 237,500 per annum

Service Objective:
To ensure that all unpaid carers of people with dementia or who have a memory loss have access and know
their entitlement to a statutory specific Carers Assessment in their own right, whether or not the person they
care for is receiving services from Oldham Cares (the new name for OMBC Adult Care) or if they have
received a formal diagnosis.
To carry out the Carers Assessment and to develop an individual support plan for the carer.

Where applicable make an application for a Carers Individual Budget payment.

To support the carer emotionally and provide practical support as required.

Description of Service:
The service is available to all unpaid carers of people with dementia or who have a memory problem. Carers
have access and are made aware of their own entitlement to a statutory specific Carers Assessment in their
own right, whether or not the person they care for is receiving services from Oldham Cares (the new name for
OMBC Adult Care) or if they have received a formal diagnosis.

A Carers Assessment is to ensure that the carer is looking after their own well-being and includes all the
aspects of their day to day life and the issues which have ansen from their unpaid carers' role, including any
emotional, psychological and social needs and how they are continuing to manage their day to day living
tasks.

Our staff carry out the statutory assessment and where possible, identity any interventions and develop a
support plan to address any specific needs which are highlighted.

As noted above, part of the carers needs assessment, is to develop a fuli support plan for the individual carer
and to assess their eligibility, where appropnate, for an Annual Carer's Individual Budget (in line with statutory
guidelines and protocols) For all those carers who meet the eligibility a completed application is submitted via
Mosaic (Oldham Cares Health 8 Social Care database) to the local authority along with the proposed support
plan for allocation of the appropriate budget level. This is then paid out to the individual carers by Oldham
Cares. All carers are entitled to a reassessment of their needs annually. The service we manage now has the
capacity to undertake both the initial assessment and the annual rewew of the carers needs.
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ln addition, the Service also provides one to one support for unpaid carers to help them to continue to engage

with community, access peer support groups, attend post diagnostic groups, assist them to engage sitting

services or any domiciliary support / care services they may require.

The service will also carry out initial overview benefit checks to ensure that they are claiming all their

entitlements, and, if applicable, refer them on to our Information 6 Advice Seivice for benefit form completion

for specific benefits.

As part of the wider Oldham Memory Service model we work alongside our partners to develop awareness,

offer training and support peer / post diagnostic groups / GP training days and contribute to the annual

Dementia Conference and the Dementia Strategy.
Referrals to the service via Pennine Care Foundation Trust, Oldham Memory Clinic, OMBC Adult Care

Services, Hospital Social Work Team, Royal Oldham Discharge Co-ordinators, Community District Nursing

Team, GPs, Hospital Consultants, Other Age UK Oldham Services, PIP Workers, Rehabilitation Care Units,

Family or Self referrals.

Activity / improvements in last 12 months:
~ Working closer with the newly formed social care clusters.
~ Fully integrated with the Memory Service Practitioners —shared referral form / care plans now in place.

Provides better information and able to specify timescales and urgency of referrals.

~ increased staff capacity and resources available on a regular basis.
~ introduced regular question / answer sessions and attending every two months at Springboard and the

Saddleworth Carers Groups.

Relevant figures:
Number of new carers assessments carried out by the service: 172

Number of carers assessments reviews which have taken place: 197

Total number of Carers Assessments / Carers Reviews undertaken:

Number of carers support plans generated by the service:
369
369

Number of individual budgets applied for by the service:

All Carers Individual Budgets we applied for were granted by Oldham Cares.

Number of talks given to peer support groups by the service:

369

16

Number of presentations to other professionals including GPs,
social workers, practice nurses etc.

Risks/Threats:
~ Loss of contract.
~ Loss of assessable building for drop in purposes.
~ Demand can overstretch capacity on occasions.
~ The service has been facilitating taster sessions for carers / PWD —this is part of another organisation's

contract, however, they have no capacity and if they did have staff they report they are not insured to

take clients in their cars. If we didn't support this function, we are concerned our clients would miss out

on valuable opportunities to engage with wider community. This has been reported back to our funders

and hopefully may be addressed in the forthcoming new Dementia Strategy.
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ENHANCED LUNCHEON CLUBS

Funding Source:
Local Authority contract for 6122,569 supplemented by Age UK Oldham

Service Objective:
The aim Lunch Club service is to combat social isolation by providing the opportunity for older people to meet
and make new friends and join in a variety of activities, whilst also providing a healthy, home-cooked 3 course
meal.

Description of Service:
Provision of 266 places per week between 9 venues across Oldham Borough.

The luncheon service remains an important part of the Preventative agenda. With additional funding awarded
within the contract for April 2019, the Lunch Club service model encompasses staffing levels to enable us to
provide additional levels of support to clients to which enables them to access and remain within the service if
their physical or mental health declines.

We provide a home cooked three course lunch and the opportunity to partake in a varied schedule of social
activities. We collate regular current information with regards to availability within the community and our
opportunities for services / support / other leisure outlets, We maintain client's records within this service
monitoring health deterioration. As part of this service we signpost and refer clients to other appropriate
services that may benefit the client.

Activity / improvements in last 12 months:
We opened 2 new groups, which focus more on the social activity and trying to build friendships while still
providing a light meal. We have had a good uptake within one group of the younger older person which can
often be a difficult group to capture.
The other is in a more rural area where social activity groups are limited and people are often isolated.

Relevant figures:
Throughout 18/19 lunch club provisions were set 13,832 places per annum.
Due to over subscription within groups we had 14,021 places filled.
This exceeds our funders target of 95'/o of places filled. We currently achieving 101'lo

Risks/Threats:
With the challenging times ahead for Oldham Council this could pose a risk with regards to the continued
funding. Lunch clubs are also dependent on the catering services and this must be taken into account in any
future planning.

E-ON ENERGY PROJECT

Funding Source:
Funding source —Age UK National in partnership with E-ON 610,800

Service Objective:
Lwing in a cold home can have serious health implications, particularly for the old, very young and for people
with a disability; it can even be a factor in premature death. Around 40'/o of excess winter deaths are a result
of circulatory diseases (including heart attacks and strokes) and around a third of excess winter deaths are
due to respiratory illness. In addition to contributing to increased morbidity there are many illnesses which are
made worse by cold temperatures. This puts a strain on local general practices, hospitals and other health
services. The Department of Health estimates that for every one excess winter death there are 8 extra
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hospital admissions. Oldham has 11.2% of households classed as fuel poor which is 0.8% higher than the
England average (10.4%).

Our service aims to improve the environment local vulnerable people are living in to help prevent the issues
listed.

Description of Service:
This is our 9th year of providing the E-on Home energy scheme.
We undertake a home energy assessment followed by the provision and fitting of free energy efficient
equipment which enables older people to reduce their fuel bills and regulate their heating.
We also offer information and practical advice on how to save money on heating during the winter months

Activity / improvements in last 12 months:
EON funding has enabled us to make inroads into tackling fuel poverty and improve wellbeing by referring
people to AUKO's Information 8 Advice service who also offer home visits to anyone who is housebound.

Referrals have been received from a range of health and social care professionals.

Self-referrals have been through a range of services PIP'S at the flu clinic, lunch club clients and people
calling in at our Age UK Information and Advice office.
The staff delivering this service have been able to refer to the Warm Homes scheme, a project run by the
council which delivers free boilers and heating systems to home owners whose boilers are more than ten
years old and are in receipt of benefits or have a qualifying health condition

Relevant figures:
Warm Home Discount Scheme
Council Warm Homes for new boiler
Numbers of people referred to Age UK Oldham's other services
Information leaflets
Emergency Heating
Referral to HandyVan for heating repairs

3
3
105
150
21
0

Free equipment supplied by E-on and fitted in homes amounted to 53500

Risks/Threats:
Non-availability of funding

FALLS PREVENTION EXERCISE SCHEME

Funding Source:
Oldham Clinical Commissioning Group (CCG) —E77,545

Service Objective:
Age UK Oldham is part of the Oldham Integrated Falls Prevention Pathway. This is a partnership of providers
working together to deliver care in line with NICE and other relevant guidelines.

The aim is to:
~ Ensure the earlier identification of people at high risk of falls and /or further falls
~ Increase the number of people at high risk of falling or those who have fallen to receive a multidisciplinary

multi-factorial falls assessment and preventative steps to prevent further falls
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Increase the numbers of people who have fallen, or are at high nsk of falls, to remain confident and
continue to live independently and without becoming socially isolated

Description of Service:
As part of the falls pathway Age UK Oldham work in partnership with Oldham Community Leisure to provide a
tailored, evidence based exercise programme. Each client is offered a weekly one-hour group supervised
exercise session for a period up to 9 months. This is designed to assist those who have experienced falls or
are at risk of falling.

Aim - The aim of the programme is to prevent falls by improving the gait, balance, co-ordination, muscular
strength, tlexibility and confidence of those who have had a recent fall or been identified as being at high risk
of having a fall.

Process —To attend the falls prevention classes a GP will complete a referral form for the Falls Team
physiotherapists The physiotherapists complete a multifactorial assessment with all clients and start them on
a programme of exercises at home (called OTAGO). They will then refer appropriate people to our weekly
fails exercise prevention classes.
The classes are delivered by qualified postural stability instructors (PSI)

Transport - Door to door accessible transport is offered and arranged and can be provided to bring the clients
to the group sessions. This is a vital part of the service to enable people to attend. A range of transport
options are utilised including Ring and Ride, Age UK Oldham transport, approved taxis and volunteer drivers.
The classes are free.

Evaluation — The progress of each individual is monitored against the initial tests completed by
physiotherapists.

Reporting - The comprehensive report is completed quarterly for the CCG. In addition, an annual report and
case study are presented. The report includes details of the progress of each individual, monitored against the
initial tests completed by physiotherapists
Volunteers- Our volunteers have excellent communication skills and are fnendly and reliable.
There are 2 roles within the service. Class volunteer whose role is to provide a friendly, supportive
atmosphere at the classes and assist the exercise instructor where necessary. They help to set up the room,
welcome people attending, take a register, serve drinks and wait with the class until their transport collects
them.

Driver volunteer- They are responsible for taking older people from their homes to a falls prevention class,
including assisting people into and out of transport.

Falis Prevention Awareness
In addition to the classes we hold falls prevention awareness activities each year with Pennine Care Falls
Prevention Team and Oldham Community Leisure.
This year we wanted to focus on involving older people in developing ideas to find enjoyable activities with a
way of incorporating balance, strength and flexibility in relation to prevention of falls.
An event was held at Oldham library for the public. This was a trial, using specifically chosen activities/ games
with the aim of improving balance in a fun way.
This included indoor curling, darts, table tennis, skittles, bean bag target, indoor golf.
The event was positive and we are planning to progress this with the above games and also VVii ffit actwities
for balance at further events

Activity / improvements in last 12 months:
Classes
We hold 10 classes per week at 8 different locations throughout Oldham.
Over the last 12 months:
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~ 4,340 attendances at classes
~ 123 new referrals have been received

Volunteers
There are seven volunteers who help to facilitate sessions. The volunteers give between two and six hours a

week helping the sessions to run smoothly or transporting clients to and from venues.

The total time contributed by our volunteers over the year is approximately 600 hours.

Our dedicated falls volunteers were nominated and won the OCL (Oldham Community Leisure) award for

volunteering at the annual event in 2018.

Training / Development
1. European Union Falls Festival 2018.
A member of staff from Age UK Oldham, Oldham Community Leisure and the lead physiotherapist from falls

team attended the European Union Falls Festival 2018. The event brings together leading academics,

researchers, health and care professionals, industry representatives and other key stakeholders to celebrate

best practices in research and innovation in falls prevention of older people. It is held worldwide. In 2018 we

were fortunate that it was held in Manchester.

2. Later Life Conference
Two of the postural stability instructors attended the Later life conference. The aim was to give participants the

chance to keep up to date with research and practice.

3. Greater Manchester Nutrition and Hydration Programme

Staff from Age UK Oldham and Oldham Community Leisure attend the training on nutrition and hydration it is

particularly relevant as dehydration can cause falls. The course covered the signs and symptoms, causes of

malnutrition and dehydration and gave advice and information about how to make changes.

Classes Added Value
At the falls prevention classes additional information has been provided including:

~ Nutrition and hydration- covered the importance of eating well and staying hydrated.

~ Winter warmth - Everyone received a booklet and free thermometer to help keep their home at a safe

temperature.
~ Benefits check and attendance allowance —Many people attending the falls class were unaware of

eligibility for benefits. Appointments with our advice and information service resulted in 23 receiving

considerable benefits.
~ Life Story - Support to complete life story books.

Relevant figures:
Over the last 12 months:

~ 4,340 attendances at classes
~ 123 new referrals have been received

Recorded falls for 2018/1 9
~ 165 people had no further falls

The total number of recorded falls for people whilst attending the programme is 51. However, as this can be

misleading more detail has been provided about the falls.

There were:
~ 12 people who had x 2 further falls

~ 27 people had 1x further fall
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Risks/Threats:
Referrals- We continue to receive clients onto the programme solely from falls physiotherapy team, so thenumber of people registered is dependent upon their referrals to the service.

Transport - Door to door accessible transport is offered and arranged and can be provided to bring the clientsto the group sessions.
This is a vital part of the service to enable people to attend. Feedback from the falls prevention teamphysiotherapists and attendees identified that a lack of suitable transport is a barrier which if couldn't beincluded wouid prevent them from attending. Currently the transport is free for the first 8 weeks andsubsidised to the person after this.
Any reduction or changes to transport would therefore be a threat.

Volunteers — The role and support of our team of volunteers are also crucial to the service There has alsobeen ill health with some of our current volunteers which has impacted on service, in that staff need to covermore of the 10 classes each week. We have had difficulty in recruiting further suitable volunteers and so havevacancies at 5 of our falls ciasses. There is scope and a need to increase the number of volunteers.

Clients - We have seen changes to the needs of some people being referred with many having multiple healthconditions including stroke, Parkinson' s, diabetes, heart conditions, arthritis. This can have an effect onattendance (feeling unwell or many clinic appointments) but also necessitating some people finishing earlydue to ill health, prior to completing the programme.

Postural Stability Instructors (PSI Instructors)
To adhere to the falls contract all class instructors require a PSI qualification. This is a very intensive level 4course and there are currently a limited number of qualified instructors in our area.

Due to this level of qualification the instructors historically have been on higher salary scale. The salary of lessqualified instructors is now almost on par which is impacting on any incentive to do the qualification.

FORUM4AGE ENGAGEMENT S CAMPAIGNING

Funding Source:
Age UK Oldham

Service Objective:
To work with and for older people ensuring they have a voice locally and their interests are represented inlocal developments.

Description of Service:
Our staff are involved in a wide range of campaigning and influencing groups and events across Oldham. Ouraim is to raise awareness of issues affecting older people to have an influence on services and activitieslocally and provide a voice for older people. We attend a wide range of community events to promote ourservices to public and professionals

Forum4Age is our over 50s forum open to anyone flving in the Oldham borough. The forum is free to join andwe work in partnership with Oldham Community Leisure and Oldham Council. We look out for fundingopportunities to enable us to hold events and give members the chance to get involved in training courses,projects and consultation throughout the year. Members can be involved in the forum as little or as much asthey like They are also encouraged to pass information on to friends, family, neighbours and communitygroups they are involved with.
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Activity / improvements in last 12 months:
We are involved in a wide range of campaigns, projects and events throughout the year, including:

~ Falls Awareness Campaign
~ National Older People's Day
~ Dementia Action Week
~ National Carers Week
~ Dementia Friends initiative
~ The Big Knit
~ Digital inclusion
~ Healthwatch events
~ Health 8 Wellbeing meetings
~ Co-operative Volunteer marketplace
~ MICRA (Manchester Institute for Collaborative Research on Ageing) events and seminars
~ GM Ageing Hub events
~ GM Older People's Network events

Forum4Age activities are limited at present due to a lack of external funding.

Relevant figures:
Dementia Friends sessions:
10 sessions held
101 Dementia Friends created

Risks/Threats:
Lack of external funding to support activities. No dedicated staff resource to look for funding or organise
forum activities. This means that activities are provided on an ad hoc basis according to the capacity of the
different funded projects.

Opportunities:
Local Ageing Well work is being undertaken by Oldham Council as the Greater Manchester Mayor' s
Challenge has identified 'ageing well' and 'age-friendly' communities as a key area of work for each focal
authority. We are involved in this strategic work and have submitted a proposal to develop the Forum4Age
model to fit in with the 'Ageing Well' programme going forward.

GENERAL INFORMATION. ADVICE. BENEFITS AND MONEY

Funding Source:
No specific funding allocated to this Service to date. The Service relies on applying and receiving the annual
EON funding each year. For the year 2018/19 we were successful in receiving 224, 800 EON funding. AUK
Oldham funded this service to the amount of 521,495 in 2018/19

Service Objective:
During this period April 2018 until March 2019 additional funding / staff capacity for this service was reliant on
the combined budgets 8 resources / staffing capacity from other AUKO services that receive funding via

Oldham Cares and CCG as below:

~ Choosing the Right Care
~ Dementia Information 8 Support Service
~ Dementia Specialist Carers Assessment Service
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Objectives:

~ To provide independent general information, advice and support for older people and their carers on a

wide range of social care, housing issues, local services and benefits and money.

~ To maximise income for older people and their carers and explain and to complete relevant claim forms.

~ To act as a gateway for Age UK Oldham's services and ensure that people are connected to the correct

services both in house and the wider local community.

Referral to the service via Adult Services, CCG, Community Matrons, GPs, Carers Groups, Alcohol and Drug

Teas, other Age UK Oldham Services including PIP workers, and self- referrals to the daily drop in service.

Description of Service:
The service offers help, advice and practical support for everyone over 50, and their carers. We offer a wide

range of advice / support including:

~ Benefits and Money
~ Community Care
~ Housing Issues
~ Care Services
~ Local Services

We carry out full benefits checks and completing the relevant claim forms for age related benefits or carers.

We act on older people's behalf to resolve I and A issues.

This service is free and confidential.

Staff at Age UK Oldham have undertaken relevant training from the Department of Work and Pensions and

have achieved Alternative Office status allowing our staff to process claims in the same way as DWP staff

with the authority to sign off identification and double date application forms — this speeds the process up for

our client group.

I and A staff continue to take annual training in line with EON funding requirements.

All tribunal cases are continuing to be referred to caseworkers within CAB or the local authority Welfare Rights

Team as they receive local authority funding for this element and we have no capacity to take up this role.

Information and Advice plays a key role in the first engagement that some service users have with our

organisation. The flexibility of the service enables easy access and support for older people and their carers

and the experience and skill of staff with this client group has shown, not only the financial results clients have

been able to realise, but the opportunities for them to further engage with other Age UK Oldham services-

which on many occasions they may have been unaware of existing.

Activity / improvements in last 12 months:
For the seventh year running we have been successful in receiving E ON Benefit Awareness Funding.

Meeting and exceeding targets given and assisting older people to rnaximise their income particularly those

with long term health condition in hard to reach groups

Continue to act as a gateway for other AUKO services.

Continue to connect older people and their carers to the help and support they required.

Continue to act on behaff of older people to resolve issues.
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I and A staff have created a useful power point presentation dispelling the myths and promoting the

advantages for older people claiming benefits. Good feedback from social care colleagues who have copies

when visiting clients to assist with identifying those people who would be entitled to claim benefits.

Positives outcomes arise not only from the extra money but also from the role of the I and A Advisors.

Feedback received from people who have used the service includes in summary.

Reducing feelings of anxiety by receiving support from a friendly, knowledgeable and locally well

connected professional who could help them to navigate unfamiliar territory and make things happen to

support them.
Legitimise older people's need to claim unclaimed benefits by explaining benefits and allowances in

terms of financial and social contribution that older people have made to society over their life time.

Established a relationship of trust and respect which older people felt was important. Advisors were 'on

their side' and independent of official agencies.

In terms of the extra money AUKO achieved for older people and the impact on their day to day life:

~ They had more money to cover essentials such as food, fuel and clothing.

~ It helps them with their disability or chronic health conditions to continue to live in their own home with

sUpport.
~ It helps with depression and frustration arising from health conditions, low income and isolation by

enabling older people to:
Become more mobile, for example, to do their shopping etc. Addifional money may help with taxi fares

or paying a personal assistant to help them engage with outside community and retain independence

/ choice.
To renew some of their social life through visits to friends, family and attending lunch clubs and social

events.
To be able to treat grandchildren or those who help them so they feel they have a reciprocal rather

than a dependent relationship.

Relevant figures:
General Information and Advice Service assisted:

1035 individual people with general advice.
1407 telephone contacts made on behalf of people to various organisations to resolve issues or make

alternative follow up appointments.
5093 individual subject codes were recorded This details the amount of specific issues per client on

the database.
In addition a further 864 individual people were given full benefit checks and relevant benefit claims

forms completed - including Attendance Allowance / Carers Allowance, Personal Independent Payment,

Pension Credit and Blue Badge applications. As a result of the benefit claim forms submitted by the I and A

Team the additional annual income accrued for vulnerable older people is 5959,759.29.

Risks/Threats:
The AUKO Information & Advice Service is still meeting the Age UK brand partnership's contractual

agreement, as laid out by Age UK nationally. Leads from AUK nationally and AUKO I and A team have

revisited the original development plan from 2011/2012 to ensure that we are still fully compliant with the re

written brand requirements in place.

Visits have taken place with I and A Development Officers from AUK and we have now taken steps to embark

on the Information and Advice Quality Programme. Age UK nationally have indicated the need for a

designated I and A management lead in place. This is not possible with the AUKO's current structure as only

a limited amount of E. ON funding is made available to run the full I and A service which means the service
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relies heavily on other services and the manager of those services to enable Age UK Oldham to reach brand
partner requirements

These services offer three parts of the four core requirements, however, these services are funded via OMBC
and CCG and have their own targets and stringent reporting requirements to obtain each quarter. The service
manager has continued to seek funding to enable the service to have a general advice triage officer role and a
specific I and A general advisor. Unfortunately to date we have been unsuccessful but we continue to pursue
any opportunities.

Other nsks
~ Loss of the disabled access building we currently use for I and A delivery which would pose health and

safety issues for drop in service.
~ Loss of EON funding.
~ Loss of other organisation funding which would directly affect the I and A.
~ The service is widely used and we are not always able to meet demand with our staffing levels.

Retaining funding from EON for the service involves the staff capacity majorly concentrated on fulfilling EON
funding requirements resulting in reduced time available for general I and A / drop in and other necessary
work including work on the Information S Advice Quality Accreditation.

GEORGE STREET CHAPEL

Service Objective:
To generate an income to support the charity. The chapel provides a local service of history, education and
events for local people to come together in the community.

Description of Service:
George Street Chapel is Oldham's Grade II* listed former Independent Methodist Chapel; a stunning and
unique building full of history and tales of the past - hidden in the hustle and bustle of Oldham's town centrel
We host many Hohday 8 Seasonal Activity events for all ages, we introduced Easter event with activities
aimed at families which sold out bringing in new visitors, so will continue to add more family events to school
holiday timetables. Our Afternoon tea events are very popular and also selling out.

We have hosted in excess of 120 bookings over the last 12 months

The Chapel has been used by various charities, businesses, Oldham Council for meetings, AGMs and Award
Ceremonies. We are now being recognised nationally taking bookings from government funded companies
that carry out training all over the country

Activity / improvements in last 12 months:
We have captured more feedback and customer contact Info for future events and marketing. Many of which
do return. Our feedback after all events has been excellent and we strive to continue this.

Our first wedding / party open day was successful and generated future bookings so will repeat this. Our
seasonal events will be repeated with additional dates due to popular demand.

We are researching new ideas such as pudding club and singles night to introduce at the chapel We are
planning to market out of the area for group tours and school experience, targeting adult learners and
colleges
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Relevant figures:
Our plans for the future sustainability centred around income from weddings, celebration parties, events,

meetings, conferences.

Parties
Wedding
Christmas and seasonal events
Internal events / training

Funeral Wakes
AGM's, Local Authority Meetings etc
George St Chapel experiences
School experiences
Open Day
TOTAL 115X BOOKINGS

4
2
15
23
1
42
13
10
1

Risks/Threats:
Loss of funding to support training events held at the chapel will impact on reduction of bookings both internal

and external.
Advertising costs are high compared to event and hire charges

Training costs to meet ISO are high which impacts on revenue

As events/bookings are spasmodic and seasonal permanent staffing is not cost effective and reliance is on

additional hours from staff in other departments or zero hours contracts.

GET GOING TOGETHER

Funding Source:
GlaxoSmithKline funding ended 31 October 2016. We again successfully applied for some small pots of

external funding to support this work to reduce reliance on charitable reserves and supported other

organisations to apply for funding for us to provide GGT activities for them. Funding source 2018/19: 67,000

NHS Mental Health & F400 Action Together.
Several small grants were received through partnership working to deliver chair-based exercises in

community locations. We have accessed funding through First Choice Homes Oldham NIF (New Innovations

Funding) to fully fund sessions at of 6480 Daisy Hill Court, 6270 Washbrook Court.

We also worked with Housing 21, obtaining 6420 for sessions at Victoria Gardens. Victoria Gardens also

received Ambition for Ageing funding of 6300 for exercise sessions which were delivered by Get Going

Together.

Housing 21 also funded F175 of sessions at Wood Square at Greenfield and 6125 of sessions at Aster House.

650 of sessions were funded at Holland Close in Delph. 6940 of sessions were funded by Hope Methodist

Church in Failsworth. A small investment of 61250 was approved for the Caribbean Community Group during

Quarter 4 to be delivered by Get Going Together.

Charges have been put in place for the chair-based exercise sessions and Sessional charges for partner

organisations have been increased to E25 per session. Where individual charges are made this is between

62 - 63 per session.

Charges are made across the service - with the exception of health walks/strolls — although donations are

requested for attendance at the Knit and Natter group which go towards volunteer driver expenses for the

group.
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GGT groups also completed the Greater Manchester Alcohol Survey and we obtained 6300 funding for

supporting underrepresented groups and people with long-term health conditions to participate in the survey.

Service Objective:
To improve the mental and physical health and wellbeing of older people.

To raise awareness of the benefits of remaining and/or becoming active in later life.

To provide information and resources to enable groups to be able to take part in physical activity.

To provide activity that is accessible for people with long-term health conditions, people living with dementia

and those who are at risk of developing a range of health conditions.

Description of Service:
GGT provides:
4 health walks —accredited by Walking for Health

Chadderton Hall Park 25
Daisy Nook 12
Alexandra Park 8
Tandle Hills 6

2 scenic strolls —7 people at Dunwood Park and with a range of long-term health conditions. We finished

delivering the Uppermill Scenic Stroll due to low levels of attendance.

An additional monthly Age UK Oldham walk and lunch was started in February by one of our volunteers who

risk assesses and co-ordinates this programme. The initial walks were attended by approx. 20 people and

have continued to grow.

OLGBT walk programme

Knit and Natter group at Alexandra Park in the Boathouse Cafa with a volunteer driver supporting housebound

people to attend (18 people supported through the year 2018/19).

Weekly chair-based exercise sessions have been provided in several community venues:

Sweetbriar House
Violet Hill Court
Daisy Hill Court
Washbrook Court
Hope Methodist Church

Runnymede Court
The Caribbean Group

Victoria Gardens
Wood Square
Aster House
Holland Close
Hopwood Court (intermediate sessions following the Falls programme delivered by Phil Brooke)

Demonstrating and loaning equipment for community use —games, indoor curling sets,

Attending outreach sessions and community events to promote the benefits of staying active.

Providing taster sessions for community groups and sheltered housing schemes, including Lido House in

Grotton and the Women's Institute in Failsworth and the Housing B, Care 21 Professionals Forum in

Chadderton.

Partnership working with a range of organisations.
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Activity / improvements in last 12 months:
When the GiaxoSmithKline funding finished at the end of October 2016 Age UK Oldham continued to sustain
a lower level of activity. Many of the activities we were involved with were sustainable and continuing in their
own nght and some of the activities required a small amount of support. We continued to provide support for
some of the people who still required support to attend activities, e.g. the Knit and Natter/Walk and Talk group
at Alexandra Park and the Scenic Strolls.

Several funding applications were made. Some were successful (detailed above).

Relevant figures:
Maintain low-level programme of activity, including walk programmes, chair-based exercise sessions, knit and
natter group.

Risks/Threats:
Lack of consistent external funding to continue the activities for the most vulnerable people with more complex
health conditions who need ongoing support. There are developments at a Greater Manchester level relating
to sport and physical activity for older people, but there is little resource to support this work.

Opportunities
Opportunities for continued small pots of funding from Housing Association partners.

HANDYVAN SERVICE

Funding Source:
Local Authority contract —f30, 179

Service Objective:
The objective of the service is to undertake tasks that aim to deliver preventative and practical support that will
enable vulnerable older people to live independently and safely in their own homes.

Description of Service:
Qur trusted contractors will provide small repairs of electrics, joinery, building and plumbing.
Included in these tasks are home security, fitting of key safes, moving furniture, small joinery repairs, garden
tidy etc

Activity / improvements in last 12 months:
This year we have had a few less enquires due to hawng no heating/gas contractor We have found it difhcuit
to recruit at the rate of F30 per hour. However, in summer last year we added a general Handyperson to our
approved contractor who undertakes low level tasks such as gardening, painting fences, cleaning drives and
general low level repairs. He has a waiting list of over 5-6 weeks before he can accommodate people. This
has led us to take on a gardener who just undertakes low level garden maintenance.

We have a good reputation and most of our requests come from returning customers or recommendations by
friends and neighbours. We have advertising again this year.

The system works well with our administrator dealing with customers from the request of work (usually by
phone) through to invoicing and final payment and lastly the quality questionnaire. This allows us to monitor
the quality and standard of work from the contractors and internal handyman in addition to measuring how it
has contributed to the customer's independence and feelings of being more in control and safe within their
home.
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We continue to use the internal Charitylog system and this is helping us refer to internal senrices and to help
us track a customer's journey within AUKO. It also records and produces the outcomes for the reporting to the
local authority.

We have successfully gained funding from Age UK national to the E-on scheme and provided 120 visits to
people who are living in a cold home and or struggling to pay fuel bills.

We offer both advice and free low energy measures and link internally vrith our Information and Advice team
who will in turn look at completing a full benefits check.

The handyperson is also able to sign post to other services and contractors alike will report any areas of
concerns about peoples well - being and home circumstances to the manager who will take appropriate
action.

When jobs requested are more complex we will assist people who are vulnerable to obtain quotes and assist
them throughout the process. We also work with families and social workers as required and ensure the

person is getting the best options and value for money.

Our hourly rate for contractors is under review, as we recognise this is below the national average and we will

look to applying revised charges on completion of our review. We continue to deduct an administration fee
from the contractor's invoice to help make this costly resource more sustainable.

Relevant figures:
~ Enquires to the services
~ Completed jobs

Contractors
Internal

1 940
1811
800
1011

We added 2 additional contractors this year,
1 gardener
1 home security contractor (alarms, lights etc)

Although there is no Warm Homes contract with Age UK Oldham the council provide us with a budget to assisi
older people who are in fuel poverty and need repairs, furniture, beds and bedding which gives us flexibility to
make requests for funds for older people who we feel are in need and at risk when they are unable to pay for

repairs

Risks/Threats:
Always the risk of funding being reduced or not renewed for both HandyVan and E-on which are co-existent.

Inability to attract contractors at economical rates.

INTERGENERATIONAL PROJECTS

Funding Source:
Radciyffe School F1,000

Service Objective:
Link older people with the younger generation through a variety of intergenerational projects to share
experiences and learn from each other.
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Description of Service:
Our intergenerational work here at Age UK Oldham has a direct impact on everyone involved. Older people
feel increased self-esteem from being able to share their life stories with younger people, as well as being a
positive role modei to the younger generation too. Both younger and older generations benefit from engaging
with each other on equal terms, breaking down barners and challenging negative stereotypes.

Activity / improvements in last 12 months:
Again we delivered Age Exchange at Radclyffe school and brought 10 older people together with 10 G&T year
7 students.

GMYN again chose to work alongside the OLGBT group and painted the side room at Chadderton Over 60's
Centre and included a rainbow and handprints symbolising 'togetherness' on the wall.

58 older people attended a Christmas concert at Radclyffe school.

18/19 brought 278 children on an expenence tour at GSC with activities led by intergenerational volunteers at
GSC

Relevant figures:
Age Exchange 10 students/10 older people
GMYN 24 students/18 older people
Christmas concert 30 students/ 58 older people
GSC Experience 278 children / 21 intergenerational older volunteers

Risks/Threats:
School are unable to fund Age Exchange / GSC experience tours due to cut backs

LGBT Lesbian Ga Bisexual Trans ender GROUP -'OUT AND ABOUT'

Funding Source:
Self-funding

Service Objective:
A group for older lesbian gay bisexual and transgender to meet and socialise.

Description of Service:
Out 8 About is based on the last Friday of each month for the older LGBTQ community
Men and women aged 50 and over who identify as being Lesbian, Gay, Bisexual and/or Transgender.
The aim of the group is to reduce social isolation for older LGBTQ people improving their social weilbeing and
mental health
Having a support peer group has increased support for individuals tackling isolation & loneliness helping them
to remain independent and live at home for longer Having this group AUKO has increased its awareness of
the needs of older LGBT people helping us progress and plan effectively for the future

Activity / improvements in last 12 months:
Formed a close link with LGF in Manchester —one member helped by providing an interview and photos for
the Pride in Practice initiative.

Group has become more 'self-reliant' and have formed a committee, set their own meeting agendas and take
minutes.
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Membership now take the lead on activities arranging and booking theatre tickets, cinema and meals out

Relevant figures:
Increased numbers from the older Transgender community —this year we have three new older transgender

women who have joined the group

Risks/Threats:
None discernible, this is a low cost project funded by Age UK Oldham and managed by existing staff member.

LIFE STORY

Funding Source:
Oldham Cares - F17,000

Service Objective:
To carry out life story work for older people living in care homes and in the community, recording their likes,

dislikes, experiences and aspirations to provide a treasured heirloom and resource for care staff and families

involved in future care of an individual. We are funded to record the books in book format. We also produce

audio versions of the books where appropriate for the individual.

Description of Service:
Volunteers for our Life Story project spend time helping people to reminisce and collate information about their

life and experiences. We do life story work with people living in care homes, sheltered housing and in their

own homes. We are funded to provide the life story information for the individual in book format.

The life story books are a valuable tool to aid staff involved with a person's care to provide a more

personalised service and to get to know the person and their likes, dislikes and aspirations. Life story work

has many benefits for the individual, their family, friends and care staff.

Activity / improvements in last 12 months:

We had 34 volunteers registered with the project, including one of our Trustees who present the completed life

story books to some of the people we work with.

Older people centred
This is an enjoyable and worthwhile activity for everyone involved and is particularly valuable for people living

with dementia and their families. It is cherished by the person and their family as an heirloom and is used by

care staff to get to know the person they are caring for and provide better care for them. It informs staff about

the person's childhood and family history, lists their achievements, documents their likes and dislikes, needs

and aspirations. We try to make our life stories accessible for all and record audio books for people who are

visually impaired.
Our Life Story team produced 51 life story books during 2018-2019 and, if consent is given, we provide a copy

of each life story book to be held at Oldham Local Studies & Archives Centre and made available to the

public. Most people give their permission and they now have a collection of over 200 life story books.

Committed to working in partnership

We continue to work with Pennine Care NHS Foundation Trust Care Home Liaison Service to produce life

stories for care home residents seen by their service.

We also work with other Age UK Oldham services to promote life story work to their clients and participants.

We try to encourage people to complete the life story 'template' themselves if they are able to do this.

Relevant figures:
Target: 48 life story books.
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Achieved: 51 life story books.

We worked with further 19 people who did not complete the whole process due to illness or death. Theseclients still benefit from the visiting process as the finished life story book is only one aspect of the benefits ofthe project.

Risks/Threats:
Frailty of clients in the care homes means visits are taking longer to complete or that we are unable tocomplete the finished product.

Increasing frailty of volunteers results in fewer volunteer hours due to periods of longer-term sickness.

LOCAL WELFARE PROVISION

Funding Source:
E24, 007 from OMBC

Service Objective:
The purpose of the Local Welfare Provision Scheme is to provide support:

To meet short term emergency/immediate support needs of vulnerable residents
~ To assist vulnerable residents to establish or maintain a home in the community
Examples of these are:

People who have suffered a disaster/crisis such as fire or flood
~ Families under exceptional pressure
~ People who are homeless or rough sleepers
~ Vulnerable older people
~ People fleeing domestic violence
~ People leaving care
~ People moving out of institutional or residential care
~ People moving to supported accommodation/independent living
~ People who are leaving prison or detention centres
~ People who are chronically or terminally ill

~ People with alcohol or drug issues
~ People with learning diffficulties

Description of Service:
Customers apply for support by using the Oldham Council website. The customer's needs are assessed and
the customer informed of the decision
We receive referrals from the LWP OMBC by email, stating what furniture the customer is entitled to. Items
include double and single beds, sofas, armchairs and dining table and chairs.
We send a letter/map out to the customer asking them to come in and view the furniture asap, they are
allowed 3 weeks to do this We also follow this up with a phone call and text messages. Once the customer
has called in and chosen their furniture, the items are booked on the delivery schedule and delivered within 5
days.

Occasionally, there are emergency requests, where people are desperate, so delivery would be done on thesame day as the referral Customers are also able to choose items from our warehouse, eg coffee tables etc
which can be purchased at a reduced cost Some customers are difficult to get hold of and don't respond tothe letter/phone calls, in which case we notify the LWP department for advice. A telephone qualityquestionnaire is done with customers on a monthly basis to see if they are happy with the service and the

-37-



AGE UK OLDHAM LIMITED
(A COMPANY LIMITED BY GUARANTEE)

TRUSTEES' REPORT (INCLUDING DIRECTORS' REPORT)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019

quality of items, this allows us to monitor our quality of work and improve where necessary. Monthly reports
are sent in to OMBC with numbers of referrals and deliveries.

Activity / improvements in last 12 months:
We had 116 more referrals this year with 158 more items being requested.

Relevant figures:
We had 373 referrals with 471 items requested:

Single mattress:
Single bed base:
Single bed 8 mattress:
Double mattress:
Double bed base:
Double bed 8 mattress:
Bunk beds:
Armchair.
3 seater sofa:
2 seater sofa:

4 requested
2 requested
236 requested
1 requested
1 requested
21 requested
8 requested
98 requested
36 requested
64 requested

3 delivered
2 delivered
226 delivered
1 delivered
1 delivered
19 delivered
8 delivered
57 delivered
26 delivered
42 delivered

1 cancelled

10 cancelled

2 cancelled

41 cancelled
10 cancelled
22 cancelled

TOTAL' 471 REQUESTS, 385 DELIVERIES, 86 CANCELLATIONS

Risks/Threats:
Customers not responding to our letter/phone calls.
Customers not being at the premises on day of delivery to sign for their items. Waste of resources.
Lack of furniture being donated from the public.
In April this year we lost the LWP contract due to tender price so no longer provide this service.

MEN IN SHEDS

Funding Source:
550,300 from IBCF (Integrated Better Care Fund)

Service Objective:
Our Men in Sheds at both Failsworth and Greenfield have a distinct community development philosophy and
positively impact the health and wellbeing of men who attend. The projects demonstrate they are contributing
a dual health and social role for a range of men. In particular male mortality rates are higher and preventable
in diseases such as lung cancer, prostate cancer, heart diseases all of which are exacerbated by poor health,
lifestyle choices, diet and physical inactivity.

The project targets men over the age of 50 who have become socially isolated due to life changing
circumstances or long term or acute health conditions. Men particularly over 50, tend to be slower at going to
the doctors for'problems that may turn out to be serious and in many instances early detection would be
hugely beneficial.

Although there is a great emphasis on the social benefits of men facing retirement issues and social isolation,
the Shed's aim is to promote health activities and lifestyle changes. Research shows that men who are
socially connected take better care of their own health, and seek help earlier from health care professionals
leading to healthier lifestyles.
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Description of Service:
We continue to run the sheds over two locations. We are closely linked with the PIP service (Promoting
independent People) offenng places for men who have undergone a life changing event. This has worked well
over the last years and GP's welcome the feedback and case studies that have proven this project helps to
increase the well-being of men and reduces their isolation

On average the two sessions daily have around 8 men attending each session. Due to the complex needs of
some men, at times this has restricted numbers of admissions for safety reasons.
We hope in the next year to increase this to 12 per session. In doing so we are going start a buddy scheme so
that men whose needs are greater can be supported by a mentor It is clear that a place in the Sheds is an
alternative to traditional services and provides a missing preventative element for men of a younger age.

The staff members work hard to address individual need, always thinking outside of the box for men with
varying levels of capabilities.

Activity / improvements in last 12 months:
VVe continue to work out in the community making bespoke items for the districts and schools etc.
This year we have a made a replacement bench that sits next to the canal in the centre of Uppermill and is a
credit to the shedder who made it.

Due to the Tesco carrier bag small grant we now have a fully operational allotment at Greenfield complete with
large poly tunnel and a unique watenng system that the men have designed and installed.
This open space adds value for men who are limited in skills due to mental health or frailty levels and enables
them to work outside in a covered area where they can potter at their own pace. It also provides an outdoor
space for social events and is open on the days that the shed is closed if men wish to spend some time
tending the plots.

We have started to slowly introduce ISO systems to this project and hopefully come into the scope next year.

Relevant figures:
Sessions attended: 3976

Risks/Threats:
Risk of losing funding

MINOR ADAPTATIONS

Funding Source:
Spot Contract —terms agreed on each written request and prices agreed. Requests over 9500 need to be
approved prior to commencement of each lob by Head OT

Service Objective:
This year we have continued to providing the Minor/Major adaptations for the council. As in all previous years
this service has no contract or service level agreement

Age UK Oldham's Handyvan fitter and external contractors supply and fit a range of internal adaptations on a
request basis by the Occupational Therapist teams.

We provide this seance for both private homes in Oldham and for all the external work for Housing 21
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Description of Service:
Although there have been fewer numbers of requests for jobs this year the work requested is on a larger scale
and therefore costlier.

The work requested by Housing 21 is always to adapt outside spaces for accessibility which can be anything
from ramps, walls, fencing, patio doors etc. We have adapted to this way of work and our administrator/trusted
assessor is more involved in site visits and compiling quotes and co-ordinating the work.

We have a complex database, are committed to quality and every customer receives a quality questionnaire.

Activity / improvements in last 12 months:
Our internal Handyman continues to provide external grab rails, shower seats, floor to ceiling poles and
complex stair rails and bespoke requests.

Our contractors are mainly requested to fit external rails, steps/ramps.

ln providing this service to the LA and H21 we are more business-like in our approach and our rates are much
more competitive than in our care and support services.

This project continues to provide a steady income stream for AUKO.
We continue to improve our systems and are working towards the ISO quality standards.

Relevant figures:
The number of completed adaptations in 18/1 9 amounted to 610 with a turnover of 6162k.
ln comparison to 16/1 7 when we completed 1592 jobs with a turnover of 6202k.

Risks/Threats:
It has been discussed with the council that this project may be added to the HandyVan contract but we have
had no further discussions with regard to this and it continues to be a spot contracL

All of the above will have implications on the staff team should the work be withdrawn.

NUTRITION AND HYDRATION

Funding Source:
Age UK Salford - 610,800

Service Objective:
The 2 year Greater Manchester Nutrition and Hydration Project is designed to tackle dehydration and
malnutrition among people aged over 65 in Greater Manchester. It will use a specially designed 'paperweight
armband' tool to find out if people are at risk.

Description of Service:
Age UK Oldham is supporting the project in Oldham and Rochdale, working with Age UK Salford and Oldham
& Rochdale Public Health teams. 14 hours of staff time is allocated to for a project worker to support the
Nutrition & Hydration Project Worker employed by Age UK Salford, 7 hours per week in Oldham and 7 hours
per week in Rochdale.

The project aims to raise awareness about the risks of malnutrition and dehydration in later life. It takes a
positive approach, encouraging older people to eat and drink well, giving tips and advice about increasing
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ca)one intake for people who need help to put weight on It also links with other local schemes that improve

self-care, improve oral health, reduce social isolation and improve mental and physical health.

In order to reach people who are at risk of malnutntion and dehydration, the key priority is to urge other

organisations who come into contact with older people to enable their frontline workers to train as Nutrition

and Hydration Champions and to use the intervention in their everyday work.

Activity / improvements in last 12 months:
We have been involved in the steering group for the Greater Manchester Nutrition 8 Hydration programme

since the application for funding was being put together; We have attended steering group meetings and from

September 2018 have worked in a formal partnership with Age UK Salford to support the project in Oldham

and Rochdale.

We have set up a series of training sessions for Age UK Oldham staff and volunteers to train them as Nutrition

8 Hydration Champions, 3 of which were held during 2018/19. The training opportunity has been promoted

by all managers and through Oldham Prevention Alliance. The sessions have also been opened up to staff

and volunteers from partner agencies

Relevant tigures:
3 training sessions facilitated.

Risks/Threats:
Reputational risk to Age UK Oldham when working with partner Age UK staff.

Funding for Greater Manchester pilot project currently scheduled to end March 2020.

OLDHAM PREVENTION ALLIANCE

Funding Source:
Oldham Prevention Alliance has been co-ordinated and funded by Age UK Oldham since February 2012.

Service Objective:
~ To bring together local services, including statutory, voluntary, private sector and social enterprise

organisations, community groups, faith groups, any group or mdividuai supporting the over 50s to live

well and independently in their own homes.
~ To raise awareness of the range of preventative services and support available to the over 50s and

promote opportunities for people to 'age well' in the Oldham borough.

~ To improve communication, signposting and information-shanng between services

~ To provide a forum for services to share information and expertise.

~ To provide a forum to identify and report gape in service and more generally feed into decision-making

structures within the borough as appropriate e.g. Health 8 Wellbeing Board Link with strategic fora and

use link organisations, e g. Action Together, to feed in information as appropnate.

~ To promote the referral systems and protocols of members.
~ To promote training and funding opportunities and opportunities for/oint working.

Description of Service:
Oldham Prevention Alliance was established following consultation in 2006 with older people who identified a

number of problems with communication and cross-referral between organisations in the borough. The

project was funded initially by Oldham Partnership and Oldham Council.
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Oldham Prevention Alliance aims to bring together local services, including statutory, voluntary and private
sector organisations and community groups which provide support to the over 50s to keep people living
independently in their own homes

Oldham Prevention Alliance is a multi-agency group of professionals who are linked with or have an interest in
services for the over 50s. The group meets bi-monthly, co-ordinated and chaired by Age UK Oldham. We
raise awareness of the range of preventative services and support available to the over 50s and promote
opportunities for people to 'age well' in the Oldham borough.

Activity / improvements in last 12 months:
Committed to working in partnerships
Membership of Oldham Prevention Alliance continues to grow and feedback about the meetings is very
positive.

Older people centred
Members cascade information to their own services, organisations and networks and pass on information
directly to clients who they are in contact with.

Relevant figures:
4 meetings of Oldham Prevention Alliance were held during this period.

Risks/Threats:
Lack of external funding to support the service.

PROMOTING INDEPENDENT PEOPLE PIP

Funding Source:
Funded by Pennine Care Foundation Trust E150K (PIP) and CCG E30K (ORCAT)

Service Objective:
The aim of the team is to avoid unnecessary hospital admissions and promote independence, safety and
wellness of the patient within their own home.

The aim of the project is:
~ To address the social aspects of a patient presenting at the surgery for a non-medical source of support.
~ To reduce un-necessary hospital admissions, failed discharge and reduce the frequent attendees in the

GP practise.
~ Social prescribing provides an opportunity to respond effectively and at an eariy stage to address

presenting symptoms of anxiety depression and distress.

Description of Service:
This service was commissioned based on the pilot project, Home from Hospital. After an initial 3 years
funding, the service was given a further 2 years funding, confirmed until 31st March 2019.

Age UK Oldham's PIP advisors are linked to the new 5 GP clusters in the borough of Oldham working with
and taking referrals from the integrated care teams.

Referrals are taken for older people who have undergone life changing events or are living with long term
health conditions that have affected their situation and confidence. They will have been identified as feeling
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lonely or isolated and anxious about health issues. They will need support to gain confidence to help them livethe life they want to live by managing their situation and re-engaging them back into their communities.

When referrals are received the PIP Adviser wig act as the key link, building up a relationship, listening to theolder person's needs and aspirations and together they draw up a tailored plan which suits their lifestyle andwill help maintain health and weilbeing and re gain independence. The focus is on sustainability, flexibility andtaking back control

PIP's link with the person for up to 6-8 weeks to engage them with a close supportive approach into social andleisure activities and health and wellbeing groups to manage and live weg with their emotional or physical longterm condition. They can access a range of AUKO and external activities and services for example lunchclubs, Men in Sheds, Get Going Together Activities, walking groups, craft sessions to counselling, supportgroups, community groups etc.

September 2018 - PIP Advisors are now based in each of the 5 Clusters as part of the Integrated teams.Different parts of Oldham Council, the NHS and the voluntary sector have come together and formed OldhamCares. Clusters are decided by the location of the patients GP practice. Each cluster has GP's, DistrictNurses, Social Workers, Senior Practitioners and an Age UK PIP Advisor, working together in the samebuilding to provide health and social care services locally. This joined up way of working will mean a betterexperience for patients and, in the longer term, real improvements to their health and wellbeing. The PIP rolehas evolved and the client support is much more complex to when the service first started out.

A PIP Advisor continues to have a daily presence in the ORCAT (Oldham Rapid Community Assessmentteam), which started in October 2016. The team consists of qualiTied Nurses, Therapists, a Social Worker andCommunity Assistants. The team support patients for up to 5 days after hospital discharge. The PIP Advisor
will carry out a home visit and refer to Age UK and other external services (i.e. Age UK Shopping Service toprovide an emergency shop, Age UK HandyVan Service, who can assist with downstairs living, moving a beddownstairs, Fire Safety check etc. ) If the patient has been identified as being lonely and isolated, they will bereferred to long-term PIP

Activity / improvements in last 12 months:
Two year funding to 31 st March 2019
PIP Advisors are now part of the Integrated teams in Cluster as part of Oldham Cares.

We need to continue to produce evidence of effectiveness and cost savings in local health and social care.

Relevant figures:
PIP Manager and Age UK CEO, meet with funders Quarterly, to present Reports/KPI's, which comply withfunder's requirements.

Risks/Threats:
Continued funding

SAFE AT HOME AND SHOPPING SERVICE

Funding Source:
Age UK Oldham

Service Objective:
The home shopping service is based at the Co-Op store in Lees and has been run by Age UK Oldham sinceJuly 2006.
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This service continues to operate Tuesday to Friday delivering across the borough Wednesday to Friday.

Staffed by 1 part time Co-ordinator and 3 part-time operatives/driver.

Description of Service:
The Shopping Service is funded by the charity due to no Local Authority Funding received for the service for
some time. All new client enquiries for the service are passed to a co-ordinator who oversees the service,
who will make contact with clients and ask some questions to determine the need for the service and evaluate
if there is any other way the client could get their food shopping.

We are constantly reviewing and looking closely at each new client to ensure they reach the criteria. On

average we are now delivering to 70-75 older people across the borough each week. Provisions purchased on
client's behalf from the Co-op is on average of E2, 000 per week but despite discussions with the Co-op
management they will not provide either a financial contribution or a discount on purchases to partially fund

the service.

The service is available to older people across the borough who cannot shop for themselves or access their

local shops and to people recovering from illness or a spell in hospital. The majority of our customers are
housebound. Frailty levels are such that for every 3-4 admissions we see a discharge of a similar figure per
month.

Major benefits include linking to other services and referring on if necessary. This makes it potentially the
'eyes and ears of other services for the people with whom it is in contact and is a major contributor to the
local preventative agenda. Our staff work closely with families and case workers. We also report areas of
concern and work closely with Social Services and care agencies.

Referrals are encouraged from a wide range of partners and by self-referral and are a vital component of the
ORCAT Service (Oldham RAPID Community Assessment Team) which supports people for five days in their

own home on discharge from hospital. ORCAT offers support from a multi-disciplinary team of OT's, District

nurse, RAID worker, Social worker, community support and an AUKO PIP worker.

The Shopping Service is a vital service for AUKO PIP Advisors based in the Clusters, to refer in to and can be
a life line for those people either short term or long term.

All potential customers undergo a holistic assessment of their needs, reviews are carried out every twelve
months or as and when there is a change in a customer's need or circumstances.

The staff team currently rings the customer and takes orders over the phone the day before delivery.

Customers are encouraged to eat healthily and are given information on offers that are available at the Co-

Op. The staff carry out the shopping in store and deliver it the following day. They will put the shopping away if

required. Staff monitor the client's well-being on the day and, if appropriate, check that the food stored is in

date and food ordered by a third party is being consumed by the client. All areas of concern/change are
recorded and reported to the manager who will take action.

Activity / improvements in last 12 months:
This year we increased the charge from 66 to F8 per delivery. This was accepted by all customers. A Manager
who oversees the service, went. out with the Shopping Service driver on all deliveries, to speak to each client,

discuss their needs and ensure there was no other way they could get their food shopping, ensuring that

people who had no other ways/means of getting food shopping on a weekly basis. The majority of clients
expressed their need for the service and stated how they did not know what they would do without it and had
no other means of getting their weekly food shopping.

Full reports are kept on all new clients to establish the need for the service as this may prove valuable should
funding become available.

-44-



AGE UK OLDHAM LIMITED
(A COMPANY LIMITED BY GUARANTEE)

TRUSTEES' REPORT (INCLUDING DIRECTORS' REPORT)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019

Relevant figures:
As Age UK Oldham's contracts/funding agreements are undergoing efficiencies there is less trading or
fundraising surplus to support contracted services.

Risks/Threats:
The service no longer receives Local Authority Funding

SLIMMIN' WITHOUT WOMEN

Funding Source:
66,000
Agreed by the Age UK Oldham Board

Service Objective:
To provide regular SWW sessions for men aged 50+ across the borough, starting by piloting twice-weekly
sessions for 1 year, with the aim of these becoming sustainable.

Description of Service:
The project is a way of bringing men together in a social setting they can identify with and feel comfortable in
The aim is to support men aged 50+ to:

~ Lose weight
~ Improve their diet
~ Become more active
~ Feel good about themselves
~ Socialise and pursue new interests

Activity / improvements in last 12 months:
Weekly sessions started in September 2016 at the Oasis Academy in Hollinwood and the Satellite Centre
Greenfield.

A third group was trialled early 2019 based above Positive Cycles. (Oldham town centre) but did not prove
successful at the first attempt.

There are some real individual success stories emerging from the groups with substantial weight-loss being
achieved Beyond this however is the fact that men are using the groups to maintain previous weight-loss as
well as improving their overall health and fitness through the activities provided.

Relevant figures:
There are currently 22 involved over the two groups. The majority (16) attend the Oasis Academy with 6
attending The Satellite Centre. In addition, there are 2 women who regularly join the activity sessions.

Of the 22 involved, the main priority is:
Losing weight (12)
Maintaining previous weight-loss (3)
Increasing health and fitness (7)

There have been fantastic results from the 2 groups, with examples of Richard who has lost 5 stone, Brian
who has lost 4 stone and Brian (senior) who has lost over 3 stone and started to reverse his diabetes.
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Risks/Threats:
Attracting income in order for the groups to be fully sustainable longer-term.
Maintaining membership will require continued promotion and marketing.

SAGE KITCHEN

Funding Source:
Food & outside catering sales to the public organised from the Sage Kitchen shop.

Service Objective:
To offer a high standard food senrice to the general public, internal 3. external catering and provide food
requirements for George Street Chapel events and bookings. To generate an income to support Age UK

Oldham services.

Description of Service:
Sage Kitchen is a tasty healthy fresh place to grab food on the go, open to public for lunch and delivers
outside catering.

Activity / improvements in last 12 months:
Adjustments to the menu to increase client base such as pizzas and jacket potatoes to encourage students to
visit / seasonal changes to the menu / special offer for local businesses with the introduction of the meeting
platter.

Local delivery service on foot if orders are within the town centre.

Marketing of outside catering service to LA/CCG has achieved results.

Overall review of facility resulted in staffing reduction to allow for budget efficiencies.

Relevant figures:
Despite major reduction in staffing hours, over the counter sales did not suffer any losses.
Received 74 orders for outside catering events.
19 events catered for at chapel

Risks/Threats:
Reduction in local funding impacts on catering orders from local authority and businesses
Advertising costs are high —social media advertising is more effective.
Increase in food costs / supplies
Lack of volunteers to support the service —need to pro-actively recruit.

TALKING ABOUT MY GENERATION

Funding Source:
Ambition for Ageing Scaled Programme —National Lottery Community Fund via GMCt/0 - E2,248

Service Objective:
Talking About My Generation aims to challenge stereotypes about ageing by delivering a media campaign led

by people aged 50+.
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It aims to raise the profile of local Age UKs and to inspire, showing that later life can be fun, exciting, defiant
and empowering.

To develop the project as a partnership with older people as Community Reporters, working with them to
design digital content which will be disseminated in a range of different ways.

Description of Service:
Talking About My Generation is a campaign project, led by people aged 50+. The project is led by Yellow
Jigsaw, a media company, supported by local Age UKs in the Ambition for Ageing areas of Greater
Manchester.

The project works with a team of Community Reporters, aiming for 2 per Ambition for Ageing borough,
representing diverse backgrounds.

Monthly 'newsrooms' will be held to develop the reporters' skills in different areas of media, e.g. podcasts,
interviewing skills, writing news releases, editing, etc.
The campaign will tell the stories of older people who have overcome barriers to isolation to become involved
and engaged in the community. The Community Reporters will also develop 'special reports' on themes and
events.

Activity / improvements in last 12 months:
Age UK Oldham supported the due diligence for the project, collating information from partner Age UKs. Age
UK Oldham is also responsible for co-ordinating the steering group meetings, distributing the funding to
partners, inputting information onto the Ambition for Ageing database and collating quarterly monitoring
information for reporting to GMCt/O.
The first 2 steering group meetings were held during 2018/19, bringing together Yellow Jigsaw and the local
Age UKs supporting the project. A stakeholder mapping exercise was camed out at the second meeting.
Processes, procedures and risk register were put together. A safeguarding lead was identified. Evaluation
training was attended by Age UK Oldham staff.

Relevant figures:
The project will aim to recruit 2 Community Reporters per borough (16 total) —expressions of interest had
been received from 9 potential Community Reporters by the end of the financial year.

Monthly newsrooms will be organised —the first newsroom was scheduled in for April aiming to have a full
cohort of 16 Community Reporters.

Bi-monthly steering group meetings will be held —2 held (January and March 2019).

Risks/Threats:
Short-term project creating a group of Community Reporters, but with no long-term support for those involved.
The steering group are looking at what the legacy of the project will be and what the role and support needs of
the Community Reporters will be beyond the lifetime of the funding which ends March 2020.

TECHNOLOGY 8 US COMPUTER CLASSES

Funding Source:
Funding source - Age UK Oldham and Chargeable project

Service Objective:
IT classes for older people in small groups at Chadderton over 60's centre —horne visits are also provided at
an additional charge
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Description of Service:
Classes are held at Chadderton Over 60's centre and St Herbert's sheltered accommodation each week. We
also provide one to one home visits for those people unable to travel to the venues

All classes 8 home visits are chargeable

Our IT Tutor is also a trained computer technician and we also offer repairs and upgrades which are
chargeable.

Activity / improvements in last 12 months:
H21 commissioned our IT classes for a 6 week pilot at Violet Hill Court for residents. We charged them 630 a
week for a tutor to attend. This was popular and the residents are looking to funding this themselves in the
winter
Mobile phones and smart phones have been a popular interest in older people this year and we have
supported people to use them effectively

Relevant figures:
On average 10 —12 people attend the classes at Chadderton over 60's each week
5 /6 people attend the St Herbert's class each week

Risks/Threats:
Classes not being as popular —numbers falling
IT 5 Biscuit free sessions and demonstrations to local groups to encourage interest
Free open days
Discount for block bookings

VOLUNTEERS

Funding Source:
Age UK Oldham

Service Objective:
Volunteers make an important contribution to the work of Age UK Oldham, enabling the delivery of quality,
cost-effective services.

We recognise the importance of well trained volunteers so we also deliver a Welcome to Age UK Day
induction day to all new volunteers.

Description of Service:
Caring is at the heart of our values, and volunteers are the heart of Age UK Oldham. We believe that all our
work should involve volunteers because they bring an extra special quality to our services. Each of our
services is supported by volunteers and the commitment and dedication they bring.

Activity / improvements in last 12 months:
Thanking and presenting volunteers with awards for the service they give is really important. Again this year
we held a Volunteers Award Ceremony to honour the years of dedication many have given us. We had one
volunteer with 30 years' service in 2018.
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Relevant figures:
New Volunteers
Befrienders
Intergenerational
Falls
Life Story
Shops
Lunch clubs
Community
AFA

9
2
1

6
50
5
2
3

Risks/Threats:
Unable to recruit sufficient number of volunteers to support ongoing services and prevent future development
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MODERN SLAVERY AND HUMAN TRAFFICKING STATEMENT

This statement is provided on behalf of Age UK Oldham and is made in pursuant to section 54 of the Modem

Slavery Act 2015 ('the Act'). It constitutes Age UK Oldham's statement for the financial year ended 31 March

2019.

Age UK Oldham considers modem slavery and human trafficking extremely serious crimes, grave violations of

human rights and contrary to the ethical standards and values we hold dear. As a charity we have a zero

tolerance approach to such abuses.

We are committed to preventing modem slavery in our organisation and ensuring that our supply chain is as

equally free of both modem slavery and human trafficking (within the reasonable bounds of our influence and

control to ensure compliance with the Act by our supply chain and I or assure ourselves of their compliance).

Our organisation
Age UK Oldham is a local autominous charity registered in England and is a Brand partner of the national Age

UK charity. Our constitution states that:

'The objective of the organisation shall be to promote the relief of elderly people in any manner

which now or hereafter may be deemed by law to be charitable'.

Age UK Oldham has an operational trading subsidiary which generates income to funds the charities work.

Age UK Oldham and its subsidiary employs around 100 staff, and benefit from the support of 350/400

volunteers across our services.

The vast majority of our staff are employed directly by Age UK Oldham and its subsidiary and are not of an

employment status generally considered to be vulnerable to modem slavery in this country. We are not

complacent, and have robust policies and procedures in place.

Policies
Age UK Oldham endeavours to raise awareness among all employees of the identification, prevention and

eradication of modem slavery and human trafficking, and has policies and procedures in place to ensure that

they can do so. The relevant policies are:

1. Age UK Oldham's Critical Supplier policy and procedure requires that suppliers are formally approved by Age

UK Oldham and that they can only provide goods and services affer confirming compliance with all applicable

regulations and legislation, including the Modem Slavery Act

2. Age UK Oldham's Safeguarding Policy and Procedures acknowledges modem slavery as a form of abuse

and, where there is a concern about a child (under 18 years) or an adult (18 or over) who needs care and

support, this Policy takes effecL

Age UK Oldham aims to work with only those suppliers that demonstrate high levels of commitment to

monitoring and reducing the risk of modem slavery and human trafficking taking place within their

organisations or supply chains.

As a pre-condition to supplying Age UK Oldham, suppliers must confirm their compliance with the Act. If a

supplier fails to provide the information requested or meet Age UK Oldham's expectations, Age UK Oldham

will take appropriate action, which may include not entering into a relationship or terminating the relationship.
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Plans for 2019/20

In the 2019/20 financial year Age UK Oldham plans to take further steps to enhance our supply chain duediligence, including:

~ improving staff awareness and understanding of modern slavery and human trafficking by introducingmandatory training

~ introducing a modern slavery risk assessment register and, where high risk situations are identified,
responding to those risks.

This statement is made pursuant to Part 6, section 54 of the Act and constitutes Age UK Oldham's anti-
slavery and human trafficking statement for the financial year ending 31 March 2019 and has been approved
by the Age UK Oldham Board of Trustees on behalf of Age UK and its charitable and trading subsidiaries.

INVESTMENT POLICY

Age UK Oldham aims to produce the best financial return within an acceptable level of risk (cautious).

The investment objective for most of Age UK Oldham's long term reserves is to generate an increase in value
in excess of inflation over the long term. A small proportion of the charity's long term investments is held to
generate an income to support the on-going activities of the charity.

The investment obiective for the short term cash reserves is to preserve the capital value with a minimum
level of risk. This cash should be readily available to meet cash flow requirements.

BORROWING POLICY

Age UK Oldham when possible uses its own cash facilities rather than organised borrowing. Any borrowing
needed to fund the activities of the charity will be in line with its constitution and a plan will be in place to meet
any repayments as they fall due.

POLICY ON RESERVES

Age UK Oldham has a Reserves Policy which is reviewed on an annual basis by the Trustees. The approved
policy of the charity is that designated unrestricted funds which have not been restricted for a specific use
should be maintained at a level of 6703, 178.

The Trustees consider that in the event of a significant drop in funding, this will enable them to continue thecharity's current and planned activities for six months while consideration is given to ways in which additional
funds may be raised. This will enable all legal commitments to be met within this period including the costs of
any eventual need to wind up its operations.
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STRATEGIC REPORT

Plans for Future Periods:
Increase in accessing opportunities to deliver more preventative services especially for people from
ethnic minority communities who are significantly under represented;
Update existing and source alternative Trading outlets for both donated goods and community
equipment;
Services in Day Care centres to continue to cater for frailer more dependent older people with a high
proportion of dementia sufferers and look to diversify to provide activity aimed to attracting older men
who are presently under represented;
Explore and implement more opportunities for charged for services;
Further increase in catering provision both in service and trading areas and explore meals delivery
service;
Continue Involvement in raising standards of good practice in Care Homes;
Exploring alternative trading opportunities;
Building on previous success with local schools, creating more diverse intergenerational projects;
Increased involvement with the Asian communities both in service and trading;
Extend ISO quality system to all departments;
Prepare for and be involved in the future GM Devolution agenda.

Restricted Funds

Spec'rlic funding of projects and their monies are held in restricted funds and are not available for the general
purposes of the charity.

Financial Review

In an increasingly difficult environment, particularly with local authority budgets remaining tight it is pleasing to
report another year in which the Charity has made a small surplus of E11,808. Our trading activities are
curtailed with the removal by Age UK of the insurance business and other activities are being devised to offset
this loss in funding. The Charity has continued to provide high quality services and innovative programmes to
which our resources may be allocated. It is credit to the staff and volunteers that the Charity remains in a
strong position. We continue to reserve funds to insure against losing key contracts and having to downsize
the charity as has been the case in previous years.

E ualities and Diversi

Age UK Oldham is committed to the principles and practice of equal opportunity for all its employees,
volunteers and applicants for employment. We also believe that all older people should receive services that
meet their needs. As part of this commitment we work to ensure that our own services and resources are
relevant to the needs of all older people and are perceived by those in need as relevant and accessible.

Signed on b If of the board of Trustees

Alex Boy (Chairman)
Trustee
Dated: 21/10/2019
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Opinion
We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Age UK Oldham Limited (the 'charity') and its

trading subsidiaries for the year ended 31 March 2019 which comprise the consolidated statement of financial

activities, the consolidated and company balance sheet, the consolidated statement of cash flows and the notes

to the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies. The financial reporting

framework that has been applied in their preparation is applicable law and United Kingdom Accounting

Standards, including Financial Reporting Standard 102 The FinanciaI Reporting Standard applicable in the

UK and Republic ofIreland (United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice).

In our opinion, the financial statements:

give a true and fair view of the state of the group and charitable company's affairs as at 31 March 2019
and of its incoming resources and application of resources, for the year then ended;

have been properly prepared in accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting

Practice; and

have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006.

Basis for opinion
We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK) (ISAs (UK)) and

applicable law. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor's

responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements section of our report. We are independent of the

charity in accordance with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements in

the UK, including the FRC's Ethical Standard, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in

accordance with these requirements. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufhcient and

appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Conclusions relating to going concern
We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters in relation to which the ISAs (UK) require us to

report to you where:

the trustees' use of the going concern basis of accounting in the preparation of the financial statements is

not appropriate; or

the trustees have not disclosed m the financial statements any identified material uncertainties that may

cast significant doubt about the charity's ability to continue to adopt the going concern basis of
accounting for a period of at least twelve months from the date when the financial statements are

authorised for issue.

Other information
The trustees are responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the information

included in the annual report, other than the financial statements and our auditor's report thereon. Our opinion

on the financial statements does not cover the other information and, except to the extent otherwise explicitly

stated in our report, we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the fmancial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information

and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial

statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If we

identify such material inconsistencies or apparent material misstatements, we are required to determine

whether there is a material misstatement in the financial statements or a material misstatement of the other

information. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of
this other information, we are required to report that fact.

We have nothing to report in this regard.
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Opinions on other matters prescribed by the Companies Act 2006
In our opinion, based on the work undertaken in the course of our audit:

the information given in the trustees' Report, which includes the directors' report prepared for the
purposes of company law, for the financial year for which the financial statements are prepared is
consistent with the financial statements; and
the directors' report included within the trustees' report has been prepared in accordance with applicable
legal requirements.

Matters on which we are required to report by exception
In the light of the knowledge and understanding of the charity and its environment obtained in the course of
the audit, we have not identified material misstatements in the directors' report included withht the trustees'
report.

We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters in relation to which the Companies Act 2006
requires us to report to you if, in our opinion:

adequate accounting records have not been kept, or returns adequate for our audit have not been
received from branches not visited by us; or
the financial statements are not in ageement with the accoun1ing records and returns; or
certain disclosures of trustees' remuneration specified by law are not made; or
we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit; or
the trustees were not entitled to prepare the financial statements in accordance with the small companies
re~~e and take advantage of the small companies' exemptions in preparing the trustees' report and
from the requirement to prepare a strate~o'c report

Responsibilities of trustees
As explained more fully in the stateinent of trustees' responsibilities, the trustees, who are also the directors of
the charity for the purpose of company law, are responsible for the preparation of the financial statements and
for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view, and for such internal control as the trustees determine is
necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are f'ree from material misstatement, whether
due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the trustees are responsible for assessing the charity's ability to continue
as a going concern, disclosin~~ as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern
basis of accounting unless the trustees either intend to liquidate the charitable company or to cease operations,
or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are fiee
from material misstatement, whether due to fiaud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that indudes our
opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with ISAs (UK) will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can
arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial
statements.

A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements is located on the Financial
Reporting Council's website at: http: //www. &c.org. uk/auditorsresponsibilities. This description forms part of
our auditor's report.

- 54—



AGE UK OLDHAM LIMITED
(A COMPANY LIMITED BY GUARANTEE)

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT (CONTINUED)

TO THE MEMBERS OF AGE UK OLDHAM LIMITED
(A COMPANY LIMITED BY GUARANTEE)

Use of our report
This report is made solely to the charitable company's members, as a body, in accordance with Chapter 3 of
Part 16 of the Companies Act 2006. Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the
charitable company's members those matters we are required to state to them in an auditors' report and for no
other purpose. To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone
other than the charitable company and the charitable company's members as a body, for our audit work, for
this report, or for the opinions we have formed.

Michael Royle BA(Hons)FCA (Senior Statutory Auditor)
for and on behalf of Grundy Anderson dk Kershaw Limited

Chartered Accountants
Statutory Auditor
Capital House
272 Manchester Road
Droylsden
Manchester
M43 6PW

21 October 2019

Grundy Anderson & Kershaw Limited is eligible for appointment as auditor of the charity by virtue of its
eligibility for appointment as auditor of a company under of section 1212 of the Companies Act 2006
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Notes
I come and endowments from
Donations and legacies
Charitable activities

Activities for generating funds

Investments

Trading compensation

Unrestricted
funds

general designated
f

13,928
451,703

872,593
3,792

34,445

Restricted
funds

1,133,139

Total
2019

13,928
1,584,842

872,593
3,792

34,445

Total
2018

9,630
1,657,374

905,542
2,805

22, 125

Total income and endowments 1,376,461 1,133,139 2,509,600 2,597,476

~~Ed~t~
Raising funds 216 216 216

Charitable activities

Other

8 388,390

5 739,956

1,371,604 1,759,994 1,850,772

739,956 867,610

Total resources expended 1,128,562 1,371,604 2,500, 166 2,718,598

Net gains/(losses) on
investments 14 2,374 2,374 1,105

Net incoming/(outgoing)
resources before transfers

Gross transfers between funds

250,273

(244,541)

(238,465) 11,808 (120,0171

2,014 242, 527

Net movement in funds

Fund balances at I April 2018

5,732 2,014 4,062 11,808 (120,017)

1,173,694 701,164 97,630 1,972,488 2,092,505

Fund balances at 31 March
2019 1,179,426 703,178 101,692 1,984,296 1,972,488

The statement of financial activities also complies with the requirements for an income and expenditure
account under the Companies Act 2006.
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CONSOLIDATED AND COMPANY BALANCE SHEET

AS AT 31 MARCH 2019

Notes

2019
Group

2018
Group

2019
Company

2018
Company

Fixed assets
Tangible assets
Investments

15
16

1,118,760
284,208

778,389 1,118,760 778,389
281,833 284,213 281,838

1,402,968 1,060,222 1,402,973 1,060,227

Current assets
Stocks
Debtors

Cash at bank and in hand

17
18
19

4,934
174,097
582, 135

4, 126
286,296
892,358

3,728 2,644
184,474 334,522
568,897 840,331

761,166 1,182,780 757 099 I 177 497

Creditors: amounts 20
falling due within one
year 179,838 270,514 175,776 265,236

Net current assets 581,328 912,266 581,323 912,261

Total assets less current liabilities 1,984,296 1,972,488 1,984,296 1,972,488

Income funds
Restricted funds

Designated funds

Unrestricted funds

21
22

22

101,692
703, 178

1,179,426

97,630
701,164

1,173,694

101,692
703, 178

1,179,426

97,630
701,164

1,173,694

1,984,296 1,972,488 1,984,296 1,972,488

The accou were approved by the Trustees on 21 October 2019

A B ( aihnani

Trustee

Charity Registration No. 1145196
Company Registration No. 07267880
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Notes
2019

f
2018

Cash flows from operating activities
Cash generated from operations 28 114,143 616,944

Investing activities
Purchase of tan~able flsed assets
Interest received

(428, 158)
3,792

(208,206)
2,805

Net cash used in investing activities

Net cash used in financin activities

(424,366) (205,401)

Net (decrease)/increase in cash and cash
equivalents (310,223) 411,543

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year

Cash and cash equivalents at end of year

892,358

582, 135

480,815

892,358



AGE UK OLDHAM LIIVIITED
(A COMPANY LIMITED BY GUARANTEE)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019

Accounting policies

Company information
Age UK Oldham Limited (A company limited by guarantee) is a private company limited by guarantee
incorporated in England and Wales. The icy'stered office is 10 Church Lane, Oldham, OL I 3AN.

1.2 Accounting convention
The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the Companies Act 2006 and
"Accounting and Reporting by Charities: Statement of Recommended Practice applicable to charities
preparing their accounts in accordance with the Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and
Republic of Ireland (FRS 102)" (as amended for accounting periods commencing from I January 2016).
The charity is a Public Benefit Entity as defined by FRS 102.

The financial statements are prepared in sterling, which is the functional currency of the charity.
Monetary amounts in these financial statements are rounded to the nearest f,.

The financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention. The principal
accounting policies adopted are set out below.

These financial statements consolidate the results of the charitable company and its wholly owned
trading subsidiaries, Age UK Oldham Trading Limited, More Mobile Limited and George Street Chapel
Limited. A separate Statement of Financial Activities (SOFA) is not presented because the charitable
company has taken advantage of the exemption afforded by section 408 of the Companies Act 2006.

Going concern
At the time of approving the financial statements, the trustees have a reasonable expectation that the
charity has adequate resources to continue in operational existence for the foreseeable future. Thus the
trustees continue to adopt the going concern basis of accounting in preparing the financial statements.

1.4 Charitable funds
Unresu icted general funds - these are funds that can be used in accordance with the charitable objects at
the discretion of the trustees.

Designated funds —these are unrestricted funds designated for particular purposes by the trustees within
the objectives of the charity.

Restricted funds - these are funds that can only be used for particular restricted purposes within the
objects of the charity. Restrictions arise when specified by the donor or when funds are raised for
particular restricted purposes.

Further explanations of the nature and purpose of each fund are included in the notes to the financial
statements.

L5 Incoming resources
Income is recognised when the charity is legally entitled to it after any performance conditions have
been met, the amounts can be measured reliably, and it is probable that income will be received.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CO~D)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019

1 Accounting policies (Continued)

Cash donations are recognised on receipt. Other donations are recognised once the charity has been
notified of the donation, unless performance conditions require deferral of the amount. Income tax
recoverable in relation to donations received under Gift Aid or deeds of covenant is recognised at thetime of the donation.

Legacies are recognised on receipt or otherwise if the charity has been notified of an impending
distribution, the amount is known, and receipt is expected. If the amount is not known, the legacy is
treated as a contingent asset.

Investment income, including associated income tax recoveries, is recognised when receivable.

1.6 Resources expended
Expenditure, which is charged on an accruals basis, is allocated between:

- expenditure incurred in generating funds;
- expenditure incurred directly in relation to charitable activities; and
- expenditure incurred in the governance of the Charity. This expenditure includes audit fees, certain
legal and professional fees and a proportion of management costs considered to be involved in
governance issues.

A designated fund is established for expenditure which has been committed to projects, but remains
unspent at the year end.

1.7 Tangible fixed assets
Tan~~ble fixed assets are initially measured at cost and subsequently measured at cost or valuation, netof depreciation and any impairment losses.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost or valuation of assets less their residual values over
their useful lives on the following bases:

Freehold property

Long leasehold property
Otfice 6't daycare equipment
Fixtures dt fittings
Motor vehicles

2'/0 on cost
over the period of the lease
20/0 —33/0 on cost
20'/0 on cost
25'/0 on cost

The gain or loss arising on the disposal of an asset is determined as the difference between the sale
proceeds and the carrying value of the asset, and is recognised in net income/(expenditure) for the year.

1.8 Fixed asset investments
Fixed asset investments are initially measured at transaction price excluding transaction costs, and are
subsequently measured at fair value at each reporting date. Changes in fair value are recognised in net
income/(expenditure) for the year. Transaction costs are expensed as incurred.
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019

1 Accounting policies (Continued)

1.9 Stocks
Stocks are stated at the lower of cost and estimated selling price less costs to complete and sell. Cost

comprises direct materials and, where applicable, direct labour costs and those overheads that have been

incurred in bringing the stocks to their present location and condition. Items held for distribution at no or

nominal consideration are measured the lower of replacement cost and cost.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price less all estimated costs of completion and costs to be

incurred in marketing, selling and distribution.

1.10 Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents include cash in hand, deposits held at call with banks, other short-term liquid

investments with original maturities of three months or less, and bank overdrafts. Bank overdratts are

shown within borrowings in current liabilities.

1.11 Financial instruments
The charity has elected to apply the provisions of Section I I 'Basic Financial Instruments' and Section

12 'Other Financial Instruments Issues' of FRS 102 to all of its financial instruments.

Financial instruments are recognised in the charity's balance sheet when the charity becomes party to the

contractual provisions of the instrument.

Financial assets and liabilities are offset, with the net amounts presented in the financial statements,

when there is a legally enforceable right to set off the recognised amounts and there is an intention to

settle on a net basis or to realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

Basic financial assets

Basic financial assets, which include debtors and cash and bank balances, are initially measured at

transaction price including transaction costs and are subsequently carried at amortised cost using the

effective interest method unless the arrangement constitutes a financing transaction, where the

transaction is measured at the present value of the future receipts discounted at a market rate of interest.

Fmancial assets classified as receivable within one year are not amortised.

Basic financial liabilities

Basic financial liabilities, including creditors and bank loans are initially recognised at transaction price

unless the arrangement. constitutes a financing transaction, where the debt instrument is measured at the

present value of the future payments discounted at a market rate of interest. Financial liabilities

classified as payable within one year are not amoitised.

Debt instruments are subsequently carried at amortised cost, using the effective interest rate method.

Trade creditors are obligations to pay for goods or services that have been acquired in the ordinary

course of operations from suppliers. Amounts payable are classified as current liabilities if payment is

due within one year or less. If not, they are presented as non-current liabilities. Trade creditors are

recognised initially at transaction price and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective

interest method.
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019

1 Accounting policies (Continued)

1.12 Employee benefits
The cost of any unused holiday entitlement is recognised in the period in which the employee's services

are received. Termination benefits are recogused immediately as an expense when the charity is

demonstrably committed to terminate the employment of an employee or to provide termination

benefits.

1.13 Retirement benefits
The charity operates a defined contribution pension scheme. Contributions are charged to the SOFA as

they become payable in accordance with the rules of the scheme. These contributions are invested

separately from those of the charity.

1.14 Leases
Rentals payable under operating leases, including any lease incentives received, are charged as an

expense on a straight line basis over the tenn of the relevant lease.

1.15 Legal status of the charity
The charity is a company limited by guarantee and has no share capital. The liability of each member in

the event of a winding up is limited to f.l.

1.16 Support costs
Support costs comprise service costs incurred centrally in support of the project work which are

apportioned to activities in furtherance of the objects of the charity. Office costs and property related

costs are apportioned on the proportion of floor area occupied by the activity. Indirect staff costs are

allocated in the same proportion as directly attributable staff costs. Transport costs are apportioned

according to the use of transport by the relevant department.

2 Critical accounting estimates and judgements

In the application of the charity's accounting policies, the trustees are required to make judgements,

estimates and assumptions about the carrying amount of assets and liabilities that are not readily

apparent fiom other sources. The estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical

experience and other factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual results may differ from these

astuil aias.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting

estimates are recessed in the period in which the estimate is revised where the revision affects only

that period, or in the period of the revision and future periods where the revision affects both cunent and

future periods.

3 Donations and legacies

2019 2018

Donations and gifts 13,928 9,630
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AGE UK OLDHAM LIMITED
(A COMPANY LIMITED BY GUARANTEE)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019

5 Activities for generating funds

Unrestricted Restricted
funds funds

Total
2019

Total
2018

Shop income

Community cafe 6'c catering
Trading subsidiaries income

794,836
5,463

72,294

794,836
5,463

72,294

742,865
10,341

152,336

Activities for generating funds 872,593 872,593 905,542

For the year ended 31 March
2018 905,542 905,542

Unrestricted Restricted
funds funds

Total
2019

Total
2018

Shop expenditure

Community cafe
Trading subsidiaries expenditure

661,106
8,024

70,826

661,106
8,024

70,826

725,512
13,154

128,944

739,956 739,956 867,610

For the year ended 31 March
2018 867,610 867,610



AGE UK OLDHAM LIMITED
(A COMPANY LIMITED BY GUARANTEE)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEIYEENTS (CONTINUED)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019

5 Activities for generating funds (Continued)

Subsidiaries income and expenses
Age UK George
Oldham Street More

Trading Ltd Chapel Ltd Mobile Ltd
Total Total
2019 2018

Turnover from commissions/sales

Bank plus other interest

72,294 72,294 152,336

Total income 77 794 72,294 152,336

Total expenditure (70,826) (70,826) (128,944)

Net income before gift aid 1,468 1,468 23,392

The profits ofAge UK Oldham Trading Limited, George Street Chapel Limited and More Mobile Limited

are gift aided to the charity so there is no liability to corporation tax for those entities.

6 Investments

2019 2018

Income from listed investments

Interest receivable

2,704

1,088
2,540

265

3,792 2,805

7 Raising funds

2019 2018

F draisi ~ and u licitv

Fundraising agents 216 216

216 216
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AGE UK OLDHAiVI LIMITED
(A COMPANY LIMITED BY GUARANTEE)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 tVRRCH 2019

9 Support costs

Governance
costs

2019 2018

Audit fees 14,000

14,000

14,000 14,000

14,000 14,000

Analysed between

Charitable activities 14,000 14,000 14,000

10 Auditor's remuneration

The analysis of auditor's remuneration is as follows:
Fees payable to the charity's auditor and associates: 2019 2018

Audit of the charity's annual accounts 14,000 14,000

11 Trustees

None of the trustees (or any persons connected with them) received any remuneration or expenses
during the year.
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AGK UK OLDHAM LIMITED
(A COMPANY LIMITED BYGUARANTEE)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019

12 Employees

Number of employees
The average monthly number of employees during the year was:

2019
Number

2018
Number

Operational pro~ca
Management and administration

83
10

84
11

93 95

Employment costs 2019
f.

2018
f.

Wages and salaries
Social security costs
Other pension costs

1,396,962
90,835
29,454

1,471,997
94,278
23,957

1,517,251 1,590,232

There were no employees whose annual remuneration was 560,000 or more.

13 Pension Costs

The company operates a company pension scheme. The assets of the scheme are held separately fiomthose of the company in an independently administered fund. The pension cost charge representscontributions payable by the compony to the fund and amounted to f4,818.

14 Net gains/(losses) on investments

2019 2018

Revaluation of investments 2,374 1,105
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AGE UK OLDHAM LItiITED
(A COMPANY LIMITED BY GUARANTEE)

iNOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 iVRRCH 2019

15 Tangible fixed assets

GROUP

Cost
At 1 April 2018
Additions

Disposals

Freehold
property

332,762
418,299

Long
leasehold
property

f

418,562

Office th

daycare
equipment

155,705
5,524

Fixtures &
fittings

96,450
4,335

(17,002)

Motor
vehicles

217,685

Total

1,221, 164
428, 158

(17,002)

At 31 March 2019 751,061 418,562 161,229 83,783 217,685 1,632,320

Depreciation and
impairment
At 1 April 2018
Depreciation charged in
the year

Eliminated in respect of
disposals

56,780

11,937 8,371 12,067 16,746 38,666

(17,002)

87,787

(17,002)

58,633 136,213 52,720 138,429 442, 775

At 31 March 2019 68,717 67,004 148,280 52,464 177,095 513,560

Carrying amount
At 31 March 2019 682,344 351,558 12,949 31,319 40,590 1,118,760

At 31 March 2018 275,982 359,929 19,492 43,730 79,256 778,389
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AGE UK OLDHAM LIMTED
(A COMPANY LIMITED BYGU~EK)
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019

15 Tunable fixed assets
(Continued)

COMPANY Freehold
property

Long Otfice & Fixtures &
leasehold daycare fittings
property equipment

f

Motor
vehicles

Total

Cost
At 1 April 2018
Additions

Disposals

332,762
418 )99

418,562 155,705
5,524

96,450
4,335

(17,002)

217,685 1,221,164
428, 158
(17,002)

At 3 1 March 2019 751,061 418,562 161,229 83,783 217,685 1,632,320

Depreciation and
impairment
At 1 April 2018
Depreciation charged in
the year
Eliminated in respect of
disposals

56,780

11,937 8,371 12,067 16,746 38,666 87,787

(17,002) (17,002)

58,633 136$,13 52,720 138,429 442, 775

At 31 March 2019 68,717 67,004 148,280 52,464 177,095 513,560

Carrying amount
At 31 March 2019 682,344 351,558 12,949 31,319 40,590 1,118,760

At 31 March 2018 275,982 359,929 19,492 43,730 79 756 778,389
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AGE UK OLDHAM LIIVBTED
(A COMPANY LIMITED BY GUARANTEE)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019

16 Fixed asset investments

Shares in UK quoted
subsidiaries investments

Total

Cost or valuation
At 1 April 2018
Valuation changes

5 281,833

2,374
281,838

2,374

At 31 March 2019 5 284,208 284,212

Fair value
At 31 March 2019

At 31 March 2018

5 284,208 284,212

5 281,833 281,838

The Trustees seek professional advice with respect to its investment policy ensuring the portfolio of

investments have a risk profile consistent with that considered appropriate by the Trustees.

The Charity has three trading subsidiaries, Age UK Oldham Trading Limited, More Mobile Limited and

George Street Chapel Limited, whose country of registration, incorporation and operation is En@~and

and whose principal activities are the provision of insurance services, a retail outlet for medial and

orthopaedic goods and a venue for functions and an educational resource for school groups and

members of the public respectively.

17 Stocks 2019
Group

2018

Group

2019
Company

2018

Company

Finished goods and goods for resale 4,934 4, 126 3,728 2,644

4,934 4, 126 3,728 2,644
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AGK UK OLDHAM LIMITED
(A COMPANY LIMITED BYGU~EE)
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

FOR THK~ENDED 31 MARCH 2019

18 Debtors

Amounts falling due within one year:

2019
Group

f

2018
Group

2019
Company

f

2018
Company

Trade debtors

Amounts due from subsidiary
undertakings

Other debtors

Prepayments and accrued income

91,132

82,965

174,097

117,208

8,546
160,542

286,296

84,294

19,127

81,053

184,474

113,412

62,795

158,315

334,522

19 Cash at bank and in hand
2019

Group
2018

Group

2019
Company

f

2018
Company

Short term deposits

Cash and bank balances

44, 113

538,022
436,033
456,325

44, 113
524,784

436,033
404,298

582,135 892,358 568,897 840,331

20 Creditors: amounts falling due within one year
2019

Group
f

2018
Group

2019
Company

2018
Company

Other taxation and social security

Trade creditors

Other creditors

Accruals and deferred income

12,072

67,483

11,796
88,487

27,269
80,586

7, 166
155,493

12,028
66,972
9,729

87,047

27,269
79,430
6,644

151,893

179,838 270,514 175,776 265236
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AGK UK OLDHAM LIMITED
(A COMPANY LIMITED BY GUARANTEE)

NOTES TO THK FFiNANCIAL STATEMENTS (CO/%TINUED)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019

21 Restricted funds

The income funds of the charity include restricted funds comprising the following unexpended balances ofdonations and grants held on trust for specific purposes:

Balance at 1
April 2018

Movement in funds
Incoming Resources Transfers
resources expended between

funds

Balance at
31 March

2019

Online at home

Lunch clubs

Daycare

Nutrition &. hydration
Dementia care & support
Care home reviews

Talking about my generation
PIP project
Men in sheds

HandyVan/EON

Get going together
Out & about

Falls pro~me
Life story

Dementia project
Slimmin without women
Ambition for ageing
Forum for age
Choosing the right care
Community development

Information & advice

Age apart

12,767

1,182

279
758

80,851

1,050

560

183

122,569
291,938

10,800
60,290
86,957
2,248

180.000
50,300
44365

7,400

77,545
17.000

125, 151

29,311
2,465

24, 800

(186,282)
(299,646)

(7,336)
(63,469)
(87,696)

(171,769)
(73,916)

(149,423)
(1,300)

(485)
(85,366)
(24,945)

(202)
(1,414)

(146,411)

(24,3 11)
(557)

(46,715)
(360)

63,713
7,708

3, 179
739

12,767

3,464

2,248

8 231
23,616

105,058

6, 100
697

7,821

7,945

77
656

59,591
1,050
5,000
2,468

21,915
177

97,630 1,133,139 (1,371,603) 242, 527 101,692
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AGK UK OLDHAM L~
(A COMPANY LIMITED BYGU~EE)
NOTES TO THK FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019

21 Restricted funds (Continued)

The restricted funds are for particular projects specified by the donor as follows:

Online at home - at our Chadderton over 60s centre we offer technology and Us computer classes where

older people can learn at their own speed and choose which area they wish to learn about. Sessions are

weeldy and there is a small charge, but this is partly funded by Chadderton DE.

Lunch clubs - funding from Oldham Adult Social Care to provide a three course home cooked meal and

supported activities at eight locations.

Day care - funding from Oldham Social Services regarding a contracted service with OMBC to provide

130 places per week at two day care centres with meals, activities and personal care for older dependent

(assessed as having substantial and critical needs by social workers) people, also giving respite care to

carers.

Nutrition 8'r hydration - this project aims to reduce dehydration dt malnutrition among people aged over 65

by finding those at risk and encouraging them to eat and drink well.

Dementia care 4 support - funded by OMBC 6? the CCG provides information and support on all aspects

of dementia care. It provides specialist dementia carers assessments using Local Authority protocols tb

frameworks. This fund heading includes Choosing the right care which is information and support to help

older people and their carers to find suitable care options and access services and is funded by OMBC.

Choosing the right care provides information on costs, facilities, inspection reports and bed availability.

Some short term funding from Eon is also received to carry out benefit checks.

Care home reviews - commissioned by Oldham Adult Social Care to provide the Annual Monitoring and

Review Service to ensure the quality of care received by people living in care homes.

Talking about my generation - this project is trying to challenge stereotypes about a~g by producing a

media campaign led by people aged 50+.

PIP project. Funded by Pennine Care Foundation NHS Trust. Age UK staff are allied to GP clusters to

provide emotional and practical support to older people with long term health conditions aiming to reduce

non elective hospital admissions and reduce isolation and loneliness which can lead to poor health and

result in increased medical appointments.

Men in sheds - a fully equipped workshop project to reduce isolation in older men and create a sense of

belon~g to iinprove general health and wellbeing. Refurbishing furniture and making bespoke items

whilst being able to access information on finance, health and other services. This is funded by OMBC.

HandyVan/EON - is funded by Eon and is where over 120 bags containing energy efficient measures

including light bulbs, fleece blankets, thermal gloves, mugs, cuppa soups were supplied to older people in

need. Additional electric blankets were purchased for people identified as living in cold homes through

Eon energy assessments.

Get going together - funded by GlaxoSmithKline. Aims to encourage and support older people with long

term conditions (who are inactive) to participate in exercise programmes.
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AGE UK OLDHAM LImTED
(A COMPANY LIMITED BY GUARANTEE)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019

21 Restricted funds
(Continued)

Out & about - this is a programme for the OLGBT community to offer peer support and reduce isolationand loneliness. It has received funding from the Tony Lloyd Foundation.

Falls programme - funding from CCG (Clinical Commissioning Group). Exercise classes specially tailoredto improve the mobility of older people who have experienced falls or are at risk of falling - includestransport. Referrals are exclusively via the Fail Team.

Life story - funding from CCG. Recruiting and training volunteers to produce life-story books for carehome residents, the majority of whom are experiencing dementia.

Dementia project - funding from Age UK's national dementia friendly programme to support dementiarelated activities, training and resources.

Slimmin' Without Women - is designed to offer a solution for men who want to become healthier, moreactive and lose weight —funded by Age UK Oldham.

Ambition for ageing - Lottery funded project delivered in partnership with Action Together (a localvoluntary sector organisation). It is aimed at chree wards in Oldham working to increase communityinvo! vement and resilience.

Forum for age - forum for people aged 50 and over living in the Oldham borough whose activities includeevents, training, consultation, engagement & campaigns. Funded this year by Age UK,

Choosing the Right care - funded on contract by Oldham Local Authority, this is an independentinformation and practical support service to help older people and their carers to find the right care andsupport and where possible to stay living independently in their own home for as long as is possible.

Community development - funded by Age UK National to provide social and community activities for thebenefit of older people.

Information and Advice - this service provides free, independent information & advice for people over 50and their carers, covering general advice, local community services, money & age related benefits. It isfunded by Age UK Oldham.

Age Apart - this is an intergenerational project linking older and younger people in local schools - this acharged for service.

The transfers between funds relate to the following:

The transfer from restricted to unrestricted funds represents the level of unexpended resources that AgeUK Oldham Limited is permitted to retain under the agreement with the donor.

The transfers from unrestricted to restricted funds are made where the restricted funds are in deficit andthere is no likelihood of this being covered by future income.
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AGE UK OLDHAM LIMITED
(A COMPANY LIMTED BY GUARANTEE)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019

22 Desisted funds

The income funds of the charity include the following designated funds which have been set aside outof unrestricted funds by the trustees for specific purposes:

Movement in funds
Balance at Surplus for Transfer to Transfers

1 April 2018 year restricted between
funds fundsf

Balance at
31 March

2019

Unrestricted funds

Designated funds
1,173,694

701,164
250,273 (242,527) (2,014)

2,014
I, 179,426

703,178

1,874,858 250,273 (242,527) 1,882,604

The designated funds represent unrestricted funds designated by the trustees I) to cover the future costof lease commitments and 2) in support of estimated potential closure and redundancy costs.

23 Analysis of net assets between funds

Unrestricted Desisted Restricted
funds funds funds
2019 2019 2019

Total

2019

Total

2018

Fund balances at 31 March
2019 are represented by:
Tangible assets
Investments

Current assets/(liabilities)

1,118,760 1,118,760
284,208 284,208

(223,542) 703,178 101,692 581,328

778,389
281,833
912,266

1,179,426 703,178 101,692 1,984,296 1,972,488
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019

24 Operating lease commitments

At the reporting end date the charity had outstanding commitments for future minimum lease payments

under non-cancellable operating leases, which fall due as follows:

2019 2018

Within one year

Between two and five years

In over five years

27,227

138,181
104,450

48,689
63,423

183,573

269,858 295,685

25 Capital commitments

At 31 March 2019 the charity had capital commitments as follows:

2019

f
2018

Contracted for but not provided in the financial statements:

Acquisition of property, plant and equipment 66, 154

The above commitment relates to the purchase of a car park located on Silver Street, Oldham, which

completed shortly after the year-end.

26 Related party transactions

Remuneration of key management personnel
The remuneration of key management personnel, which comprises of, the chief executive and six senior

managers, is:

2019
f

2018

Aggregate compensation 246,680 252,690
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26 Related party transactions
(Continued)

During the year the Charity used the services of North Ainley, a supplier of legal service in which Mrs ZAshton is one of the partners. Purchases I'rom the company amounted to f2, 144 (2018: f5, 101) for theyear and the amount outstanding at the year end was foil (2018:Biil).

During the year the Charity used the services of Thomson Associates, a Chartered Surveying Company,in which John Thomson is one of the partners. Purchases from the company amounted to 5780 (2018:f.1,080) for the year and the amount outstanding at the year end was anil (2018: full).

During the year the Charity paid for fnil (2018: 642,679) expenses on behalf of Age UK OldhamTrading Limited, a 100% owned subsidiary. For the year ended 31 March 2019 ~v aid of anil (2018:f22,440) was payable by the subsidiary and at the year end the Charity was owed f2 (2018:f38,618).

During the year the Charity paid for fail (2018: f6,064) expenses on behalf of More Mobile Limited, a100% owned subsidiary. For the year ended 31 March 2019 ~~' aid of anil (2018:650) was payable bythe subsidiary and at the year end the Charity was owed f.l (2018:65,352).

During the year the Charity paid for f47,292 (2018: 558,934) expenses on behalf of George Street
Chapel Limited, a 100% owned subsidiary. For the year ended 31 March 2019 gift aid of f.1,468 (2018:f902) was payable by the subsidiary and at the year end the Company owed the Charity f.19,130 (2018:618,826 the Charity owed the Company).

27 Subsidiaries

Details of the charity's subsidiaries at 31 March 2019 are as follows:

Name of undertaking and country of
incorporation or residency

Nature of business
Shares held

Class

Age UK Oldham Trading Limited England
George Street Chapel Limited En++and
More Mobile Limited En@~and

Insurance sales
Events & tours

Disability aids & equipment
retailer

Ordinary 100.00
Ordinary 100.00
Ordinary 100.00

The a~negate capital and reserves and the result for the year of subsidiaries excluded from consolidation was
as follows:

Name of undertaking Profit/ Capital and
(Loss) Reserves

f
Age UK Oldham Trading Limited
George Street Chapel Limited
More Mobile Limited
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
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28 Cash generated from operations 2019 2018

Surplus/(deficit) for the year 11,808 (120,017)

Adjustments for:
Investment income recognised in profit or loss

(Gain)/loss on disposal of tangible fixed assets

Fair value gains and losses on investments

Depreciation and impairment of tangible fixed assets

(3,792)

(2,374)
87,787

(2,805)
2,240

(1,105)
93,066

Movements in working capital:

(Increase)/decrease in stocks

Decrease in debtors

(Decrease)/increase in creditors

(808)
112,199
(90,677)

2,866
603,163
39,536

Cash generated from operations 114,143 616,944
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